Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc.
XENEBRREEXZRRAR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(REEHEFMAHIBRAE])

Stock Code BR #2455 : 02373

@ CellCare NEOLOGY

£mME 1% o | LB | % | R E T
~ e X

Beauty Farm

2022 s

*For identification purposes only &3




CONTENTS A
Hﬁ A B *

3 ‘ -
*}_L 7]___'{ ?_7 = T “"‘ff ””;fr"j-sh..

2 Corporate Information 216 Independent Auditor’'s Report ki
NAIER B AZ B R B *‘fk
4 Chairman’s Statement 226 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
TEREE maBak
\ 12 Financial Summary 227 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
M2 FarElER
14 Management Discussion and Analysis 228 Consolidated Balance Sheet
Kx\: EREHHEDF GAEEAER
N 37  Directors and Senior Management 230 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EEhaREEE FaEn#ER
45  Corporate Governance Report 232 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
TrRERME FRBEERER
£
70  Environmental, Social and Governance Report 234 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements E
B HEREARS A BB mAN B
a1
S 180 Report of Directors 360 Definitions Erth

B8RS B i




2 Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CORPORATE INFORMATION

AN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEEg
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. LI Yang (Chairman of the Board) TG hE(EFSEE)

Mr. LIAN Songyong (Chief Executive Officer,
Vice Chairman of the Board)

BINKRE (BEHTE EFRFHTE)

Non-executive Directors JEMITES

Mr. ZHAI Feng 2Tt

Mr. GENG Jiagi MEH KL

Ms. LI Fangyu FHWAL
Independent Non-executive Directors BUERITES
Mr. FAN Mingchao BEER LA

Mr. LIU Teng 2R &

Mr. JIANG Hua TEESLAE
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE
Mr. LIU Teng (Chairperson) BB EE (/)
Ms. LI Fangyu FHWA L

Mr. FAN Mingchao SBEEERLA
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEEE
Mr. FAN Mingchao (Chairperson) SBERRR S (£ /)
Mr. ZHAI Feng BTt

Mr. JIANG Hua TEESLAE
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEES
Mr. FAN Mingchao (Chairperson) BB E L (FE)
Mr. LIAN Songyong KL &

Mr. JIANG Hua TS A
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY BEABIWE
Ms. ZHOU Min B+

Ms. KWOK Siu Ying Sarah (ACG, HKACG) Ik LI (ACG, HKACG)
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES RERKEK

Mr. LI Yang FHEE

Ms. KWOK Siu Ying Sarah e+
STOCK CODE B 12 X 55
2373 2373
COMPANY'’S WEBSITE YNETF R
www.beautyfarm.com.cn www.beautyfarm.com.cn
LISTING DATE £+ HH

January 16, 2023

2023F1H16H



REGISTERED OFFICE

Floor 4, Willow House
Cricket Square

Grand Cayman
KY1-9010

Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Unit 1206, 12th Floor

No. 1089 Dongdaming Road
Hongkou District

Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1901, 19/F, Lee Garden One
33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Campbells Corporate Services Limited
Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-9010

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISERS
O'Melveny & Myers

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Haitong International Capital Limited
Suites 3001-3006 and 3015-3016
One International Finance Centre
No.1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong

:1.'

[
o

2026 EHAREFREELERAT 3

CORPORATE INFORMATION
R

2R EE
Floor 4, Willow House
Cricket Square

Grand Cayman
KY1-9010

Cayman Islands

HMBRPEETEEREE

FELEES

T O &
A& B 108957
122 1206E 7T

ERITEERBH

BB MEE
7R E335
FIE — 2319421901 =

MENEROBFETRE

Campbells Corporate Services Limited
Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-9010

Cayman Islands

EEROBFERTE
EBPRELFEZLBRAF
BB BT

ERKNEHE183%

AR

1718171217165 48

BRLEER
EBIRAFIEH
3

& SR B EH R F S A
BE B AT

B AR R s B RS BAT
EBTE

RFRE221E
ERER
SRARAAERAT
EATE

AR 1R

B & B 01
3001-3006 = 2 3015-3016 F



I _____..-

Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
R o

s

Dear honourable shareholders,

During the Period, the Group was principally engaged in traditional
beauty services, aesthetic medical services and subhealth assessment and
intervention services. Over time, the Group has evolved into a comprehensive
beauty and health management service platform that offers services to cater

to the varying needs of customers.

% NEHHRRE:

NZBEN - REBF 2 SEHEDT R - BEXD MRS KD @R
BEEANY BMEARMORE RECATERA AT mnE SNl
REEBREYE EHBREAREEPHIAREZNX -

Mr. LI Yang

Chairman

O

EfE

SR & g
Dear Shareholders, B SRR -

It is my great honor to present the annual report for the year ended AAFFLFWAXEZERREERFEESTEES
December 31, 2022, on behalf of the Board of Beauty Farm Medical  fi f% 3R % $%@ﬁﬂ:2022$12ﬁ B1THIEFER

and Health Industry Inc., to all of our esteemed shareholders.

The year 2022 was a year full of challenges, as the severe external
environment and unexpected factors such as the recurring pandemic
had a significant impact on the Company’'s rapid development.
However, we remain confident that the sustained implementation of
China’s supportive economic policies will demonstrate the robust
resilience and enormous potential of the Chinese economy, providing
solid support for Chinese enterprises’ growth in the “post-pandemic”
era. Guided by this philosophy and confidence, our business
continued to advance with resilience in 2022, with a dynamic and
self-improving team that thrived even under external pressures. We
are committed to providing customer-oriented, high-quality services
that deliver exceptional experiences, as well as offering valuable
one-stop solutions for beauty and health needs to each of our
customers.

The year 2022 was also a year full of opportunities. During this year,
we officially launched and submitted our application for a listing on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. On January 16, 2023, amid the
recovery from the pandemic, we successfully listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, marking a significant milestone in the
Company’s development and the beginning of a new journey.
Leveraging the strength of both domestic and foreign capital, we are
committed to seizing the opportunities of the times and becoming the
forefront of the beauty and health industry.
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202F RFAMKER —F - INPIR[EEL - BIER

BEBEHPRARL R AINRREREREANTE -
R BFVFREBEERERBEENFIFBERNE
BHE - PEGEESRIE LR ANEIENE XHE
B MELATRMCEEIEEBIBRMERER
BENGE - ERE-—BEMEL BRMEBE
02F FHEREMRIFES - BBEFTME T - 5
HIRRE N TIRETE BRI - RMBTEFAI
BEEAREBERBNES AT NEFPREEEE
MR UNEEEEN A ZEBERORE -

2022FRABERFEMEBE—F 58— FEXNEEHHM
ERXEB EMHGE - WH2023F1 8168 - Eéﬁli

EEHNRR  KIWEEBEZXMER - ETEIR

BERLFNEZEEME  hEAF “ﬁ%ﬁ&&ﬂ’]t
oo RPIBEENIEANNE  E—FIEER
REOEE  BIRRABTEAXERENENE -



y 8 X
¥ }?-;' R --—-ﬂzn_z,_z_f;ﬁ;gaaﬁg;ﬁﬁﬁzéﬁﬁ 5
- e N
CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
F 0 ek

Results and Dividends

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company’s business
development was impacted by the recurrent COVID-19 pandemic.
However, by fully leveraging internal resources, unifying and
energizing our team, and enhancing operational efficiency, we still
achieved stable revenues, profits, and healthy operating cash flows,
providing a solid foundation for the Company’s continued
development. In 2022, the Group served nearly a million customers,
generating a revenue of RMB1.64 billion and an adjusted net profit of
RMB157 million, with cash reserves exceeding RMB900 million.

The Board proposes to distribute a final dividend of HK$0.39 cents
per Share for the year ending December 31, 2022. Subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the proposed final dividend will
be distributed on or before Thursday, September 28, 2023 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, June 28, 2023. Our mission and

responsibility is to provide returns to our shareholders. We will
capitalize on the opportunities presented by the rising beauty and
health management industry as the Chinese economy recovers,
steadily grow our business, and meet the needs of our customers
while delivering greater value to our shareholders.

RERRE
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Revitalizing Core Business Capabilities
through Sustained Investment to Forge a
Commercial Model of Beauty and Health
Portfolio

The BeautyFarm brand is committed to providing high-quality
mid-to-high-end lifestyle beauty services. With 30 years of cultivation
and accumulation, we have established a vast network of stores and
an active and loyal membership base in China’s most influential cities
and prime locations. Through long-term customer service, we have
fostered deep trust and loyalty among our customers, and have
continuously met their evolving demands for beauty and health
services by diversifying our business offerings. Thirteen years ago, the
Group developed the Cellcare aesthetic medical service business, and
in 2018, established Neology healthcare centers to expand into
subhealth health assessment and intervention services. Through
sustained innovation, we have transformed from a traditional
beauty service company into a comprehensive platform that provides
one-stop beauty and health management services. Our comprehensive
business portfolio enhances interaction and stickiness with our
customers to achieve synergistic effects and promote our sustained
development.

BFEREROLEBRED  THEXRERE
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Despite the complex challenges posed by the pandemic, the Group
has remained steadfast in its commitment to sustainable development.
In 2022, we opened a total of 20 new direct stores, including 17
traditional beauty service stores, 2 Cellcare stores, and 1 Neology
healthcare center. Additionally, we also opened 35 new franchised
stores for traditional beauty services. Furthermore, we have upgraded
19 existing traditional beauty service stores, 5 Cellcare stores, and 1
Neology healthcare center, all with the goal of continuously improving
our customers’ service experience.

Furthermore, the Group has focused on research and innovation in
new programs and services, addressing the needs and preferences of
its customers, and providing services that bring them value.
Specifically, in the traditional beauty service business, we have
launched a series of popular women’'s body care and health
procedures that have gained immense popularity among our
customers. In aesthetic medical service business, we have obtained
five national medical utility model patents, including those related to
the field of eye bag surgery, which have been applied in our services.
Additionally, we continue to explore the subhealth health assessment
and intervention services and set up Women's Special Care Center in
2022, which primarily focuses on women's health issues. Our related
research programs have received the first place in the National Health
Commission’s “14th Five-Year Key Topic Research”, opening up new
avenues in the field of women’s health.

In 2022, we temporarily closed 167 direct stores to comply with
government measures related to the COVID-19 pandemic. On
average, these stores were closed for 75 days. Despite this, we
continued to see growth in the number of active members at our
direct stores, with an average of nearly 10 visits per member.
Additionally, our three business lines maintained a high repeat
purchase rate of 83.2%, which demonstrates the strong bond and
resilience we have with our customers.

Continued Investment in Digital Operations
System to Enhance Customer Satisfaction

As we continue to expand, the role of digitalization in our operations
has become increasingly important. Over the past year, we have
remained committed to our digital investment, and our continued
efforts in digitalization have enabled us to operate our business more
efficiently and effectively. Thanks to our sustained investment over the
years, we have developed a core competitive advantage.

20225 % XEBHEBREREXERAA 7
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We have made significant progress in enhancing our ability to
manage and operate customer integration across online and offline
channels. This progress is reflected in our adoption of digital
technologies, precise analysis of customer needs, and extension of our
analytical models to understand customer satisfaction with our
services. These capabilities have positioned us as a leader in the
industry, with the ability to cultivate and retain customers, providing
sustained momentum for the Company’s future development. Despite
temporary store closures due to the pandemic, we have seen a steady
increase in the penetration rate of active members at our direct
stores over the past year.

The Group views digitalization as a key long-term strategy for its
business development. Going forward, we will continue to invest in
digitalizing our operations, business, and customer management. Our
focus will be on strengthening multi-business collaboration,
standardizing service processes, empowering our employees through
OMO training, improving our understanding of customer needs, and
enhancing our operational management to further increase customer
satisfaction.

Continuously Strengthening Organizational
Capacity and Enhancing Corporate Social
Responsibility

Our employees are our most valuable asset, and teamwork is the key
to our success. We remain committed to strengthening our team'’s
organizational capacity and improving our service capabilities to meet
the ever-changing needs of our customers and the market. We ensure
our employees receive stable compensation and benefits, as well as
opportunities for training, to maintain our team’s high cohesion and
creativity. Our shared values of striving for success and sharing
rewards have become deeply ingrained within the Group. Despite the
challenges posed by the pandemic, we achieved excellent results over
the past year, demonstrating the importance of our organizational
capacity. Specifically, the stability of our professional service team is
reflected in the stability of employees and increased corporate
recognition. Furthermore, the number of talented professionals
recommended by employees has reached a record high.
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Over 90% of the Group’s employees are women, and over the past
30 years, we have created a favorable employment environment and
provided diverse livelihood benefits for our female employees. We
offer multiple career advancement opportunities, enabling our
employees to surpass their individual potential. We have established
employee stock ownership plans at different levels, and we will
continue to strengthen our talent recruitment efforts. By co-creating a
shared vision, setting clear career development paths, and offering
benefits sharing, we aim to attract and retain talented individuals.

Continuously Deepening Industry
Collaboration and Innovation, with a Focus
on Establishing Industry Standards

As a leading enterprise in the industry, we actively participate in
industry-related work, sharing our professional knowledge and
management experience and contributing to the industry’s
development. Through deepening collaboration with upstream and
downstream suppliers and outstanding enterprises, we integrate
industry resources, promote industry innovation, and work towards
long-term development.
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For many years, we have been committed to providing
customer-oriented high-quality services, and as a result, we were
honored with the 2022 The Quality Award of The Shanghai Hongkou
District Mayor — Gold Prize. This award is a high recognition of the
Group's quality service management model and leading position in the
industry. We will take this award as a starting point to promote the
standardization of the industry and support the development of
high-quality peers in the industry.

Appreciation

The market for beauty and health management services in China is
growing steadily and has great potential. We are confident in our
future market share growth prospects. We believe that 2023 will be a
new starting point for the Company’s development, as the pandemic
recedes and life returns to normal. With the implementation of
China’s supportive economic policies and people’s upgraded
aspirations for a better life after the pandemic, new opportunities will
emerge for the Group’s development.
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We respect the market, comply with the trend, focus on customer
needs, actively and steadily expand our business while continuously
striving for excellence in our core capabilities. We firmly believe that
we can adapt to market changes and promote continuous and stable
performance growth.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, we express our sincere
gratitude to all our valued customers and shareholders for their
unwavering trust and support throughout the year. We also extend
our utmost respect to our dedicated team for their tireless efforts and
hard work. As Beauty Farm enters a new era, we, as a leader in
beauty and health industry, remain committed to our
customer-centric approach, continuous innovation, collaborative
teamwork, and comprehensive value sharing, creating greater
value for our shareholders through exceptional performance while
making a meaningful contribution to society.

Yours faithfully,
Mr. LI Yang
Chairman
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Year ended December 31,

BE+t-RA=1+—RHLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= B —T-TE —FB-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR | ARETT AREBTT ARBTT
Revenue A 1,635,414 | 1,780,740 1,503,296 1,404,752
Gross Profit EF 717,842 833,786 700,024 708,341
Gross profit margin E = 43.9% 46.8% 46.6% 50.4%
Net Profit S5 A 110,532 208,341 152,185 147,423
Adjusted net profit FEEESE b
(non-HKFRS measure) GFEAPBREEAEE) 157,359 226,694 159,173 149,015
Adjusted net profit margin EIRRFAEE
(non-HKFRS measure) GFEAPBREEAEE) 9.6% 12.7% 10.6% 10.6%
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic (RMB) — ERN(ARET) 0.52 0.97 0.76 0.70
— Diluted (RMB) — EE(ARET) 0.52 0.97 0.76 0.70
Adjusted earnings per share KREGRET
(non-HKFRS measure) (FEE B KR ELERGFTE)
— Basic (RMB) — ERN(ARET) 0.75 1.06 0.79 0.71
— Diluted (RMB) — EE(ARET) 0.75 1.06 0.79 0.71
As of December 31,
R+=—BA=+-—8
2022 2021 2020 2019
—ET-= ZEZ—F ZEZTF ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT | ARBETT ARETT AREBTT
Total assets BEEME 2,495,389 | 2,477,312 2,103,188 1,818,627
Total equity Y k) 203,109 262,536 140,708 52,755
Total liabilities aEssE 2,292,280 | 2,214,776 1,962,480 1,765,872
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEESFED 164,120 157,284 143,538 104,819




NON-HKFRS MEASURES

To supplement the consolidated financial statements of the Group
presented in accordance with HKFRS, the Company has presented
adjusted net profit and adjusted net profit margin as non-HKFRS
measures, which are not required by or presented in accordance with
HKFRS. The Company believes that adjusted financial measures
provide useful information to the Shareholders and potential investors
to understand and evaluate the consolidated statement of profit or
loss of the Group and assist the management of the Company in its
decision making. The Company believes that by eliminating the
effects of items that it believes are not indicative of the Group's
operating performance, such adjusted financial measures assist the
management of the Company and investors to evaluate the financial
and operating performance of the Group for different periods on a
comparable basis. However, these non-HKFRS measures should not be
considered independently or as a substitute for financial information
prepared and presented in accordance with HKFRS. Shareholders and
potential investors should not independently evaluate such adjusted
results or regard it as a substitute for, or comparable to, performance
reported or forecasted by other companies, as they may use similar
terms with different meanings. In addition, these non-HKFRS measures
have their limitations as analytical tools and may differ from similar
measures used by other companies.

The Company provides the following additional information for
reconciliation with the adjusted net profit under non-HKFRS.

20225 % XEBHEBREREXERAA 13
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REAAEERETEVEHREER
BRE  ARAIE KB BN BEREEQ A ERE X
WIRE BN B MEEN 2T 2 KRB FNERE
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RARE RRAEWGHEABRRLEEREER
HERERAEET B EFEREENGFABER
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BBERAEBRRYIEAEEEERBER IR
BT E BPARAERERKREEZ2RLEFL
HEPBHEFHEAEETRAFENYHELEER
B RM > AF2INZFBEMBRE LM T
ENEBIUERREAREBEFTENBRS LR HH
REJNMBERNER - BREBEREE TR
BUYEBFRRHBRES  JBRELSBEVEHREED
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B se M E b AR PT AR LFIES TRMEE

|27 245 E W

RRBRMATREINE R AL EHEIERBEW SR
EREAPFNEETHR

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
Profit for the year FERHHE 110,532 208,341
Adjusted for: T
Share-based compensation expenses LARS 19 2 1+ 19 5 BN A 2 14,178 6,290
Listing expenses WA 32,649 12,063
Adjusted profit for the year LRBRFRFE GEREETH
(non-HKFRS measure) (Note) HwEERE ) (M) 157,359 226,694
Notes: B

To better reflect the key performance of the Group’'s current business
operations, the adjusted net profit under non-HKFRS is calculated based on net
profit, but does not include:

a) Share-based payment expenses, which are non-cash expenses incurred
for the grant of share awards to certain management personnel and do

not result in cash outflow.

b) Listing expenses related to the Listing and Global Offering.

REFMRMAEEREERLENFRRI - EHEFE
AR BRMEENFMNEDREFMNBEHE A5

a) B NRAX AR TETERAB RN ZETEL
MIFR MY WESIRRSRE -

b) IR AERLETREHEENAS -
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Business Review

2022 was a challenging year for the Group. On April 22, 2022, the
Group submitted a listing application to the Stock Exchange, marking
the first step in our journey to the capital market. On January 16,
2023, we successfully completed the Global Offering, which was a
significant milestone in the history of the Group. On the other hand,
the recurrence of COVID-19 (the “Pandemic”) continued, especially in
the first half of 2022, when epidemic prevention measures were
tightened in various areas and certain cities remained locked down.
Consumers’ attitudes towards travel and consumption were cautious,
which posed challenges to the financial performance of the Group. In
2022, we adhered to our prudent development strategy, maintained
our original store-opening plan, and actively promoted continuous
employee training, digital construction and product development. This
enabled the Group to better cope with external pressures, to seize
recovery opportunities in a timely manner, to maintain a high level of
competitiveness, and to help the recovery of the Group’s profitability
as soon as possible in a challenging external environment.

We are the largest provider of traditional beauty services and the
fourth largest non-surgical aesthetic medical service provider in China
with a market share of 0.2% and 0.6%, respectively, as measured by
revenue in 2021. Our diversified service offerings cover traditional
beauty services, aesthetic medical services (including both (i)
non-surgical aesthetic medical services such as energy-based services
and injection services and (i) surgical aesthetic medical services) as
well as subhealth assessment and intervention services that are all
personalized to serve our clients’ health and beauty desire. The Group
operates multiple chain brands in China’s beauty and health
management service industry, including BeautyFarm (EEHE), our
flagship brand established in 1993, and three other brands, namely,
Palaispa (B Z25%), Neology (Ff1)&) and CellCare (% 7] 52). The Group
has built a national direct store network, which consisted of 189
direct stores including 91 stores in tier-one cities and 76 stores in
new tier-one cities, as of December 31, 2022. In addition, our
extensive national store network included 189 stores operated by our
franchisees as of the same date.

Our clients are at the core of our business. Our comprehensive service
offerings have attracted a large base of active clients. They enjoy high
spending power, and constantly pursue a healthy lifestyle and physical
appeal. In 2022, our direct stores served 78,318 active members,
which increased by 1.2% compared with it in 2021. Our active
members from direct stores made a total of 947,274 visits with an
average of 9.5 visits and an average spending of RMB18,586 in
2022. 83.2% of our active members made multiple purchases of our
services in 2022. In addition, 72.3% of our active members in 2019
made multiple purchases of our services from 2020 to 2022,
demonstrating the high stickiness of our customers. In addition to our
increasing client volume in direct stores, our franchised stores served
29,899 active members in 2022, which increased by 7.1% compared
with it in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group's revenue was
RMB1,635.4 million, representing a decrease of 8.2% as compared
with RMB1,780.7 million in 2021. For the year ended December 31,
2022, the gross profit was RMB717.8 million, with a gross profit

margin of 43.9%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue,
gross profit and gross profit margin by business lines for the years

indicated:

For the year ended December 31

L it i

e o3 #r

HE2022F12A31BIEFE - AEBHBASAR
¥ 163548 80 B2021F WA ARE1,780.78H
BT IK8.2% « H Z2022F 12 A31B ILFE - £
FAEARET178EEL » EFEE43.9% °

TREIARERARBREBREDORA - E
MREMEAA :

BZNANBLEE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Gross Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue Gross profit margin
WA E7 EFE LON EH By P
RMB'000 % RMB’'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AR®T R % AR¥TR % AREFIL % AREFL %
Traditional beauty services — EHEARE
— Direct stores —HEE 835,609 51.1 280,141 335 941,357 52.9 360,621 383
— Franchisee and others — MEEEREAM 111,137 6.8 68,507 61.6 105427 59 60,621 57.5
Aesthetic medical services BEXARE 620,199 379 342,803 55.3 673,025 37.8 386,360 57.4
Subhealth assessment and ~ ZEfEFEET{E I
intervention services TERE 68,469 4.2 26,391 38.5 60,931 34 26,184 43.0
Total &t 1,635,414 100.0 717,842 43.9 1,780,740 1000 833,786 46.8
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue,
gross profit and gross profit margin by brands for the vyears
indicated:

TREBINARERPAIRERIZMEEDORA - FE
M RENKAA

For the year ended December 31

HEZNAMALEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
Gross Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue Gross profit margin
KA e EFE WA EF ek
RMB’000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %
ARETR % ARBTR % ARBFT % AREFL %
BeautyFarm (B M) XEMAE 769,211 47.0 266,237 346 855966 481 328,562 384
Palaispa (B %5¥) AR 66,398 4.1 13,904 20.9 85,391 4.8 32,059 375
CellCare (A 5%) A% 620,199 37.9 342,803 553 673,025 378 386,360 57.4
Neology (FR) i 68,469 4.2 26,391 385 60,931 34 26,184 43.0
Franchisee and others MEREAM 111,137 6.8 68,507 61.6 105,427 59 60,621 575
Total a% 1,635,414 1000 717,842 43.9 1,780,740 100.0 833,786 46.8
Traditional Beauty Services ERERR%

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the revenue generated from
the direct stores of traditional beauty services of the Group was
RMB835.6 million, representing a decrease of 11.2% as compared to
the previous year. The traditional beauty services of the Group
primarily include facial and body care service procedures intended to
improve skin condition and overall physical well-being of our clients,
which are non-medical and non-invasive in nature. Based on the
efforts and commitment of the Group, the number of active members
of the Group continues to grow. For the year ended December 31,
2022, the number of active members of the Group’s traditional
beauty services was 75,744, representing an increase of 0.3% as
compared to 2021.

HE2022F12A31BIEFE - AEBRHEHREZAR
BHREEMERAAARKSS6EEL BEFT
BE112% ANEENERERIRBETEAEE L
BEEBREER  EENSEZNEERRFE
BEEHRER BIEEERIERANE -HERNAEE
WAERZH  NEENGEARTHER  #2
2022F12A31BILEFE X AEBEEREDRE
e B8 AEAT5744 N - 82021FEH10.3% ©
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The following table presents the key operational data of the TERMNPAEBEREDREN T T EBLEE -
traditional beauty services of the Group:
For the year ended December 31
BZ12B31BLFE
2022 2021
20225 20214
Number of client visits Bm 885,927 993,235
Number of active members served FTRIS G E B A 75,744 75,548
Average spending per active member (RMB) BREBGEMNTHHE
(AR¥T) 10,383 11,843
Number of visits per active member BRERE B IELH 9.0 10.2

Aesthetic Medical Services

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the revenue of aesthetic
medical services of the Group was RMB620.2 million, representing a
decrease of 7.8% as compared to the previous year. We win client
trust through our traditional beauty services, and then extend to
aesthetic medical services and subhealth assessment and intervention
services across the full client lifecycle. Our clients have a long history
of trusting our consistent service quality and brand characteristics,
based on which more clients are attracted to purchase our aesthetic
medical services and subhealth assessment and intervention services to
meet their needs on beauty and health. In 2022, 23.7% of the active
members of our traditional beauty services purchased aesthetic
medical services or subhealth assessment and intervention services,
representing an increase of 2 percentage points as compared with
2021, which is expected to further grow in the future. For the year
ended December 31, 2022, the number of active members of the
Group’s aesthetic medical services was 18,735, representing an
increase of 10.9% as compared with the previous year.

BEXBTRE

HE2022F12A31BIEFE - AEBHEZEEZAMR
BRABARKE2028ETT  REFTHR7.8%
AEDBBEREIREBEEELNEM  EMAE
BE2ETABEREBEIARBE AR EREET
HRTFERYS FEPFHEBEMELON—NREEE R
mEFEEBREA  BRBEZNREPZERIIES
EEERNREMoERETIHRTERYE  meEY
FHFEEMNSENK - HR2022F  23.7%NEHERR

CEBETBEEARG S REETGHETER
ﬂ"l 201 F ER2EE DS EHE MR A
BE—FIER - HE2022F12A31BILEE &
RAEHRBEERNRBHIZTEAZBBISTI/A K
EF#EIN10.9% °
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The following table presents the key operational data of the aesthetic
medical services of the Group:

TREBARMBRETRBOEBEEBUE

For the year ended December 31

BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021

20225 20214

Number of client visits ES 50,735 52,962

Number of active members served FTRERE B A 18,735 16,896
Average spending per active member (RMB) BRERGENTIIHE

(AR¥TT) 33,104 39,833

Number of visits per active member BRERGEIERH 2.7 3.1

Subhealth Assessment and Intervention
Services

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the revenue of subhealth
assessment and intervention services of the Group was RMB68.5
million, representing an increase of 12.4% as compared to the
previous year. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the number of
active members of the Group’s subhealth assessment and intervention
services was 3,070, representing an increase of 14.8% as compared
with the previous year.

The following table presents the key operational data of the
subhealth assessment and intervention services' of the Group:

DREFER TERE

HE2022F12A31BIEFE - AEBEAGEFETG
MTERBUAABARBSSHB L & EFHEM
12.4% ° B ZE2022F12A31HIEFE  BEXAEE
DRERENMEETERBOEEABA3070A B E
FHENN14.8% °

TRAPAEBHGBREFERTERE W EE
BB

For the year ended December 31

HZ12A318LLEE

2022 2021

20225 20214

Number of client visits = 10,612 8,755

Number of active members served RIS /A E 8 A 3,070 2,675
Average spending per active member (RMB) BRERGENTIIHE

(AR¥T) 15,967 16,364

Number of visits per active member BRERGETERH 3.5 3.3

! When analyzing per store performance and same-store sales, we exclude
the cooperation fee in relation to subhealth assessment and intervention
services (namely, RMB19.4 million and RMB17.2 million in 2022 and
2021 respectively) as it cannot be properly attributable to operation of
any specific stores

ELMEBERELREEHEEERE  RATTREH
DRFTHERTERBEHEIER (BN20229F 12021
FELEARNABAREI0VABETLRARKI728E8
) BREAETHEERBENTABEEMEN
LR
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Business Development

1.

Impact of the Pandemic

During the Reporting Period, economic activities in various cities
across the country were weakened due to the impact of the
Pandemic, which also had a significant impact on our business
operations. To actively comply with relevant government policies
for Pandemic prevention and control, 167 of our direct stores
were temporarily closed to a certain extent, with an average
closure period of approximately 75 days. From March to June,
2022, Shanghai experienced large-scale store closures due to
lockdowns, resulting in a 22% year-on-year decline in revenue
of the Group. From July to October, 2022, as the Pandemic
prevention and control policies eased, stores gradually
reopened, and customer flow rebounded, leading to an 11%
year-on-year growth in revenue. From November to December,
2022, after the nationwide Pandemic prevention and control
policies were lifted, both employees and consumers experienced
a slow process of infection and recovery, leading to another
22% year-on-year decline in revenue.

Due to the different characteristics of our three major
businesses, their respective impact from the Pandemic varies.
Our traditional beauty services, which are mainly focused on
multi-frequency services, was hit the hardest, followed by
aesthetic medical services. However, as customers’ awareness of
their health status increased after the Pandemic, our subhealth
assessment and intervention services saw an increase in both
client visits and revenue. To mitigate the impact of the
Pandemic, we took proactive measures during the Pandemic,
such as promoting our services through online channels,
including live streaming, online interactions among members
and community group purchases. As a result, we maintained
stable customer and member demand for our prepaid packages
during the Pandemic.

Beginning from January 2023, with the gradual lifting of
national pandemic control measures, the consumer market in
various regions has seen a gradual recovery, and the client visits
and revenue of our stores have significantly rebounded. As of
March 26, 2023, both our client visits and average spending
per visit show a low double digit growth as compared with the
same period in 2022. This indicates a rapid rebound in
consumer demand for beauty services and at the same time
highlights the efficiency of the Group’s internal management
and the influence of our brands, giving us confidence in the
recovery of our business performance in 2023.

L il 2 4 T
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2.

Maintaining operation stability and expanding store
network in an orderly manner

In 2022, despite the impact of the Pandemic, the Group
continued to steadily expand its store network in order to
maintain operation stability. As of December 31, 2022, the
Group’s extensive store network includes 189 direct stores and
189 franchised stores. During the Reporting Period, the Group
opened 20 new direct stores, including 17 traditional beauty
service stores, and established new Cellcare stores in Jinan and
Xiamen, as well as one Neology healthcare center in Xi‘an. In
addition, the Group upgraded 19 traditional beauty service
stores, five Cellcare stores, and one Neology healthcare center.
While actively expanding its direct stores, the Group has also
continued to expand its franchisee network. In 2022, the Group
opened 35 new franchised stores.

REFRBESD  PFUERBA FEER

00FE  ALEEHATINEEYE B
REEBENNTFEEFHETHEEKER -
HZE20229F12A318 » REBEANMESR
EEIEI8ORE AR RI18IRMBE - Nl
HE - SEFHEESREER20K - HhE
HERPIUE1TR - LB - BEFT M5 &
BXEMY  EALHHAZMREZEPL o 1
REBEHIIREEPIE  SKEXEMZIN
RIREER LT T R - ARBEERER
BREZMPIENRE HEFERRNER
MEE - FR2022F  ANEBFHZ MBS E
EI35% o

For the year ended December 31
BZE12A31HL

2022
2022 E

Direct stores Franchised stores

BEEE ek

At the beginning of the year REA] 177 160
Opening of new stores #PYE R R 20 35
Acquisition of new stores W B 8 P IS — -
Closure of stores P S 8 6
Total et 189 189

Promoting product and service innovation

Due to the impact of the Pandemic and changes in the market,
customers’ demand for physical healthcare has gradually
expanded. The Group’s traditional beauty business has
continuously gained insight into the needs of modern
professional women for physical healthcare, and has further
innovated and developed a series of women’s physical
healthcare products, which focuses on the adjustment of
traditional healthcare and subhealth. As a result, the proportion
of physical healthcare in the traditional beauty business has
been further expanded during the year.

HE HE E on A0 AR 75 Bl
XREBEZENTHENEL  FERPYFBRRE
FBRELSRF  FEEREZREBTEEE
BERBELEHSRBRENT R E—F4
MR T — RIS BRIEEEER
BAREERER S BT RERENRE
EAFEEREAEK T BEIEALERE
* o
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During the Reporting Period, our aesthetic medical business has
devoted more effort in the field of research and innovation. For
the year ended December 31, 2022, we have obtained five
national medical utility model patents, including “a roller needle
with dense needle point arrangement (—f&Z & HEHIHZEET)
(patent number: 2022204618075)" and “an electrocoagulation
knife with adjustment function for eye bag surgery (—fZER%E
FMBAEAEEBFADHTNENERT) (patent number:
2022222350712)". Two of our national medical technology
invention patents have entered the public examination stage,
and two of our self-developed technologies are in the patent
application stage.

In 2022, we established a Women'’s Special Care Center as part
of our subhealth assessment and intervention services business.
The center focuses on women’s health issues. The “Female
Reproductive Mucosa Health and Related Diseases Clinical
Diagnosis and Treatment Research” Project declared by our
scientific research team was successfully completed and it won
first place in the National Health and Medical Commission’s
“14th Five-Year Key Topic Research”. The Group is constantly
exploring and opening up new directions in the field of
women's health.

Professional stabilization and in-house training

The Group has maintained its strong ability to attract, cultivate,
and retain employees. As of December 31, 2022, we had a
total of 3,707 full-time employees. Our service personnel as well
as sales and marketing staff mainly work in our stores
throughout China, while other employees primarily work at our
Shanghai headquarters. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of our full-time employees by function as of
December 31, 2022.

B o S5 A

REABA - RPN BEEDS EFER A
BT B 28 Wz o = 202212 A31H 1k
FE BMAEHARE —EREHRIENN
&t (L F82022204618075) ) ~ [—FER 4%
FMMAABERAB D E R ) (FF K
2022222350712) | EHE AR SERREEE A
FAVEBAE R FE - 2B R EERITIEA
BHEEARHEBEREE 2BEAEMER
REF BB R -

BAPIE 25 (R FR AT 5 B T TR RIS 510 2022 4F
AR T &R L - BRI RERERE
BRI B B R R e K M A TR S R 2 B AR
B A R PR 22 T BoR R 70 AR B m A TR
ESEREREZTHHE]IEHRERTKR
—&8% . [P E LM ERREE TEHRRILH
HEE T

BHEABBEMAILLE
REBAERS - HBFRETE T HEKRAR
e aIee h - B E2022412 8318 &M
HE3,70782BE T - BMIWBREABUK
HEREHEIFEERMERETEMM
ET{E EMETREZERLSATRER
Ttee TREIEFT2022F12831B2 B8
TiEBaE D R4 -

As of December

31 2022

#HZ20225

12A31H

Service personnel R A B 1,914
General and administrative staff —MRITHAE 970
Sales and marketing staff HENZHAR 733
R&D staff R LkFAEAE 90
Total #Et 3,707
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The qualifications and expertise of our service personnel are
crucial to our competitiveness and long-term success. Our
physicians and nurses have obtained the requisite qualifications
and were registered with local authorities in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. Our trained therapists are not
required to be licensed or registered under applicable PRC laws
and regulations, but we will provide training to all therapists
and require all therapists to pass our internal evaluations before
commencing their roles. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of the service personnel team members at the
Group's stores as of December 31, 2022:

BMHRBABNER RBEENZE RN
BEIREREKNNZHEZ - BHMNBEER
ETEREHEBREER  TREEAEE
MOERmE Mg - RIBEPBEAEZ
FOEIR - FPIECIE IR E AT B BB HR
st - RIS ARTE EEMIEHIET - I
TR FTAEEMARG TIERMRBRMANA
TS - TREYEHZE2022F12A31BAE
B PYEM RIS A EBE AL E AR A ¢

As of December

31 2022

BZ2022F

12A31H

Registered physicians EERiiin 113

Registered nurses EffE L 145

Pharmacists 22 75) B 12
Trained therapists providing traditional beauty REEREDT RO T I A EFEAD

services 1,480

Store directors E& 164

Total wEt 1,914

In 2022, we continued to provide various training programs to
enhance the professional capabilities of our employees.
Especially during the period of store closures due to the
Pandemic, we took the initiative to provide project retraining
and pre-learning for new product launches through our internal
online education platform and micro-courses to consolidate
knowledge, improve skills, and fully prepare to provide excellent
customer service upon reopening. Throughout the year, we
launched nearly 3,000 learning projects, with over 50,000
cumulative participants and a total of more than 100,000
effective learning hours.

02F BN EAB T E X HieFied
B LEEESEAERR - BMEEE
BABEEHRETFE  BEMREER - EB7E
BEEI - FERLETAIEEE  AZENG -
RAAREE  AERBUTRAZNEE - 2FH
FRBII3,000EBEHER R 28 AL
BSEIX  AREBERRBRBI0E /NG -
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The Group's aesthetic medical business adheres to technology
as the core, and continuously improves the professional
technical training of our physicians. For new physicians, the
Group carried out the “Elite Physician Technical Training”
project. In 2022, we focused on all-round basic training for
dermatologists focusing on dermatology clinical practices,
practical skills and standardized service consultation procedures.
During the year, the Group completed the training of 13
dermatologists who demonstrated excellent practice results in
outpatient performance. For in-service physicians, we closely
cooperated with upstream suppliers, participated in expert
guidance of new technologies and new products, standardized
delivery processes, in-depth seminars and technical certification,
and continuously improved the practical ability of physicians, so
as to improve product efficiency and customer satisfaction. We
also continue to provide external training and related academic
seminars on new technologies and products in the market, so
as to continuously improve the professional ability of physicians
and improve customer satisfaction.

During the Pandemic in 2022, the Group took advantage of the
opportunity presented by store closures to maintain the stability
and retention of its professional staff through measures such as
organizing online team building activities, recognizing
outstanding employee achievements and implementing a special
compensation protection system. In addition, as a result of
improved employee morale and identification with the
Company, the number of professional talents recommended
internally reached a new historical high in 2022.

Committing to digital investments in order to yield
results

The Group is committed to long-term strategic investment in
digital construction and firmly believes that digitalization will
continue to enhance the Company’s competitiveness and
become a new driver of its business growth.

In 2022, our digital construction achieved the research and
iterative operation of 10 important self-developed systems,
including the store operation management system, the
Beautyfarm WeChat applet, the customer management function
in Enterprise WeChat, and so on. We have also adopted the
latest digital architecture and designed a digital system for the
Group. We have built an innovative online-offline integrated
operation platform that is unique in the industry. Through the
digital collection of customer information in our comprehensive
network, we further identify the various needs of customers for
different businesses. Combined with the unique customer
service process of Beauty Farm, a unique private domain
ecological business model has formed, which provides
customers with more detailed and tailor-made services, and
improves our operational efficiency and customer satisfaction.

L il 2 4 T
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With the empowerment of digital technology, we have gained
a leading position in the industry in terms of acquiring new
customers, cultivating and retaining customers, as well as
customer contribution and engagement. This has helped us
solidify our market leadership and provided sustained
momentum for the future development of the Company.

Deepening upstream cooperation and establishing
industry standards

We value establishing long-term and good collaborative
research relationships with quality upstream industry suppliers,
as well as scientific research wunits and organizations that
provide professional medical technology and equipment services.
In July 2022, CellCare (57 5), an aesthetic medical brand
under the Group, established the “Super Brand Alliance” with
Allergan, a leading global medical aesthetic biopharmaceutical
enterprise, and won the title of “China Leading Enterprise of
Juvederm Family” with their first “Super Brand Day” event, “Go
With Allergan”. At the end of 2022, we reached a strategic
cooperation with IMEIKE, a leading domestic provider of
innovative aesthetic medical products. We enriched and
improved a number of medical service technologies that have
industry differentiation through mutual sharing of technical
resources, so as to launch a number of new product and
treatment service co-creation R&D initiatives.

During the year, we were honored with the 2022 Shanghai
District Mayor’s Quality Award 2022FE L/8mERE8EE
#%), which is a high recognition and affirmation of the quality
service management model, leading position in the industry and
social benefits achieved by the Group. Taking this award as a
starting point, we will promote the standardization of the
industry and provide assistance for the quality development of
peer companies.

Future Outlook

1.

Strategically expanding service network and marketing
channels to expand customer base and enhance brand
awareness

We will continue to strategically expand our service network
and plan to open over 50 new direct and franchised stores for
our traditional beauty services in 2023. We will also continue to
open new Cellcare stores in regions not yet covered by our
aesthetic medical services, and expand our Neology healthcare
centers in suitable regions as customer numbers increase. In
addition, we will continuously upgrade our operations at both
traditional beauty stores and Cellcare stores to enhance
customer comfort.
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Mergers and acquisitions will also serve as an important
measure for the Group to expand its scale, bringing rapid
growth to the Group. We will actively pay attention to the
leading chain brands in the direct sales areas. We will
consolidate our market position in such areas through mergers
and acquisitions or strategic investments, effectively expanding
our customer base and further developing such regions. In
addition, we are considering acquiring franchised regions with
excellent performance, empowering such regions through direct
operation, and driving the acceleration of growth for our three
beauty businesses. We will also cooperate with peer companies
that appear in the post-Pandemic era and intend to be
disposed of to undertake their customer resources.

In 2023, we will fully promote the integrated online and offline
operation model, and create a new situation of integrated
operation by integrating and complementing online and offline
resources, strengthening user stickiness and precise marketing.
We will also focus on the penetration rate of aesthetic medical
business customers and the empowerment of dual-beauty
institutions. We will continue to explore opportunities for
innovative cross-industry cooperation to expand our customer
base and enhance brand awareness.

Further improving operational efficiency and customer
experience through standardization and digitalization

In 2023, the Group will continue to focus on digitalization
around business operations, customers and organization, in
order to enhance overall business management capability,
customer marketing capability, decision-making ability and
operational efficiency.

We will establish a new professional operational system for
medical institutions, incorporating the nationwide chain
management of Cellcare stores and Neology healthcare centers
as well as our entire medical professional management process
into the system. This upgrade to the existing medical system
will include the integration of medical testing equipment data,
standardized clinical process management and optimization of
clinic operational efficiency.

We will further improve our management ability to identify
customers’ needs through out our entire business network, and
comprehensively collect customer behavior data around their
touchpoints online, offline and in a full range of scenarios.
With the assistance of enterprise WeChat, we are able to
provide personalized services.

L il 2 4 T

HBETEFAEERRARN —AERRE
REBTRREERNIEE - RIAIKEEREE
TEHEBRBNEREHEHME  BBKHEX
BRIRE - EERRMEZRENTSHA - A
HEATFPER  MRRENE-FPER [
HHRMAECEBRBXEEFONBRRSL &
BEHZCRZEEME  BH=XFXBRR
BE - RMALERRBHEAMSLRANRE
FHBENRTEEBREIE  AEREFER -

2023FHMBENHER LR TRAEEZDN
B BBERERTHNERES  EBEM
i& FGR A F RIS LETTHE - FAIR S
LHBE - FERMEEMBAIEXES
%fiﬁﬁ/aiﬁiﬂﬁ TEEIHBOEE &
BERAFBAHNERZSFERE  UWEBEXE
FRRREmENEE -

BBZEELC KRBT —#1E
EEMENEFER
03FAKERBIFEREES AR B
BANBEHTES  ERETES  2HEAE
TIERE ) R BB« (EREKEENIA
RBERE -

ED\

BPSEL 2N EREREBERNEL RS
2B EEPI2 A RIRE BT O EE(E
e UL EFREXEEREZHMARER
RER  ERANBERAGER LARBE
%ﬂ*E%Tﬁxﬁﬂ*“ﬁﬁfié‘ﬂﬂ@ EL‘%E’\JE/
BREERE BPIRELEEREETME -

BPBE-—FTIRAUBEZEBEENT P
FRARNEERE N BREPRLETE
SRNE  2EITREPNITRAEMN WK
ROEMEEEEP  BREBZEMEEHR
& o



26

Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B L8 w A K oy

To enhance the vitality of our employee organization, we will
create a digital system around “value creation, value evaluation
and value distribution” to quantify employees’ abilities and
evaluate their value realization. This will help improve
employees’ work initiative and increase their productivity per
capita.

Improving customer loyalty and meeting the changing
needs of customers by introducing new technologies,
new equipment, new products and expanding service
portfolio

In 2023, our traditional beauty business will continue to
promote the R&D and innovation of women’s healthcare
projects, and launch targeted basic healthcare projects aimed at
women’s chronic fatigue, improving sleep quality and relieving
gastrointestinal pressure and eye fatigue.

We will continue to innovate and specialize in the safety,
comfort and satisfaction of our aesthetic medical products and
services. Based on the management philosophy of “small
changes, big differences”, we will refine and scientifically
manage the product technologies and marketing levels. We will
continuously launch new projects to improve and treat neck
skin tone and texture, improve and treat facial skin
inflammation, and improve and solve facial sagging problems. In
addition, we will continue to independently research and apply
for national invention patents, further constructing professional
barriers for the aesthetic medical products of the Group.

Our subhealth assessment and intervention services will
continue to focus on the development of functional medical
detection and Women's Special Care Center. By integrating
global advanced biotechnology, professional and comprehensive
diagnosis and treatment methods and quality medical services,
women’s physical health problems will be improved and a
personalized women’s health management system will be
established. Furthermore, we will also pay attention to the
endocrine disorders and metabolic risks of customers in
different ages and health states, and use advanced
technologies, such as hormone supplementation, removal of
circulatory metabolic waste and maintenance of intestinal
microecological balance, to systematically and comprehensively
improve customers’ subhealth problems and recover body
function and vitality to enjoy a healthy life.
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Continuing to cultivate, recruit and retain quality
talents, and strengthening the Group’s human
resources management mechanism

We have built “BeautyFarm Training Centers (3£ M & 3l
ALy)" in Shanghai and Wuhan, where our service personnel
could learn service procedures and improve their service quality.
Our employees are required to participate in pre-work training
and will participate in another session prior to their promotion
or when we introduce new services. Since its establishment, our
BeautyFarm Training Centers have provided over 13,000 courses
to our service personnel. In addition to the two training
centers, inspired by the Pandemic, we have introduced
advanced digital training technology and innovatively established
an online-offline integrated learning platform, which allows our
employees to effectively improve their professional capabilities
through various choices of learning methods, including Al
training, interactive micro-lessons, and others.

In 2023, we will continue to strengthen the recruitment of
technical and professional talent, including but not limited to
medical experts, product R&D personnel and digitalization
talent, in order to expand its professional talent team. In
addition, for executives and core medical professionals, the
Group aims to achieve more recruitment and retention through
co-creation of vision, setting career development channels and
mechanisms for sharing benefits.

By deepening cooperation with upstream suppliers,
sharing the Group’s industry and management
experience, integrating industry resources and
promoting the development of industry standards

The Group will strengthen cooperation with leading upstream
enterprises and excellent emerging businesses, and is committed
to providing customers with cutting-edge technologies and
products through joint R&D of technical materials, sharing
technical information and establishing R&D bases, so as to
further enhance the core competitiveness of the Company.

The Group has nearly 30 years of extensive experience in the
beauty and health industry, and in the past year alone, we have
exchanged ideas with over 200 organizations. We hope to
increase the openness and transparency of the industry,
continuously improve our influence in the industry and further
devote ourselves to establishing industry standardization and
leading the healthy and sustainable development of the entire
industry.
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Financial Review
Revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily from three service offerings: (i)
traditional beauty services to individual customers at our direct stores.
The Group also generates revenue from sales of skincare products
(including product sales to consumers in direct stores, and to
franchisee stores and others). Additionally, the Group earns franchise
fees from our franchisees; (ii) aesthetic medical services (including
both (i) non-surgical aesthetic medical services such as energy-based
services and injection services and (ii) surgical aesthetic medical
services); and (iii) subhealth assessment and intervention services. In
addition, the Group earns cooperation fee in relation to subhealth
assessment and intervention services. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of the Group’s revenue by service offerings for the
periods indicated:

f % (51 B8
WA

AEBEMRATEZRE=ZARKERE : \RELE
AEARTFPRHENETRE - ARBETLHEE
EER(BRABEEBEEARMAMBEREREM
HEEM) PEEWA 1o - AEE IR RE
MBS - (BEEDTIRY (B0 FRER
KBRS - a0RE 2 1325 AR5 BL0E 5 BR A% K (i) SN 5
AR AR A RAS) & R (i) 3R B ATl & T TR AR -
SN - AEE G RRAE R T HERGRIRAEE -
TREIAEERFARBMZRREEE S5 HBA
R

For the year ended December 31
BZE12A31BLERE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Revenue Revenue
A WA
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®ET % ARBTT %
Traditional beauty services BHREDRS
— Direct stores — BEE 835,609 51.1 941,357 52.9
— Franchisee and others — NERRE R E 111,137 6.8 105,427 5.9
Aesthetic medical services BEEARY 620,199 37.9 673,025 37.8
Subhealth assessment and R R R TERS
intervention services 68,469 4.2 60,931 3.4
Total ast 1,635,414 100.0 1,780,740 100.0

Due to the Pandemic in 2022, the Group's revenue decreased by
8.2% from RMB1,780.7 million in 2021 to RMB1,635.4 million in
2022.
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Traditional Beauty Services — Direct Stores

The revenue of traditional beauty services of the Group generated
from direct stores decreased from RMB941.4 million in 2021 to
RMB835.6 million, which is primarily attributable to the negative
impact of the Pandemic in 2022. To protect the health and
well-being of our employees and clients and in support of the efforts
to control the spread of the Pandemic, the Group closed or reduced
working hours of certain direct stores. As a result, the client visits
decreased in 2022.

Traditional Beauty Services — Franchisee and Others

The revenue of traditional beauty services of the Group generated
from franchised stores and others increased from RMB105.4 million in
2021 to RMB111.1 million in 2022, primarily due to the expansion of
franchisee network of the Group.

Aesthetic Medical Services

The revenue of aesthetic medical services of the Group decreased
from RMB673.0 million in 2021 to RMB620.2 million in 2022,
primarily due to the negative impact of the Pandemic in 2022, which
caused temporary store closures to certain of our CellCare (5] 52)
stores, particularly in cities such as Shanghai, Changchun, Beijing and
Shenzhen. As a result, the client visits decreased in 2022.

Subhealth Assessment and Intervention Services

The revenue from subhealth assessment and intervention services of
the Group increased from RMB60.9 million in 2021 to RMB68.5
million in 2022, primarily due to continued business expansion of
subhealth assessment and intervention services under our continuous
monitoring of the demands of the clients, partially offset by the
negative impact of temporary closure of our Neology (#fIR)
healthcare center in Shanghai and Beijing due to the Pandemic.
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Same-Store Sales A 5 8 &

The Group closely tracks the revenue generated by our direct stores ANEBZRYGHELEEEANRARBEHEEE
and our same-store sales growth, to monitor how matured stores & &) IERKAPIEE —BREBHEANERIR - TX
have performed over time. The following table sets forth details of &%l AN B 7 A< B3RS 69 [R] 5 S5 & 7515

the Group’s same-store sales for the periods indicated:

For the year ended
December 31

BZ12A31MBLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
Number
of same-
stores (a) Revenue Revenue  Growth rate
[E 5 21 E (a) HER HERE REERX
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Traditional beauty service stores BHRERRBPIE
— Newly-established stores — AP 21 76,409 84,058 -9.1%
— Developing stores — ERFPIE 51 229,704 259,905 -11.6%
— Matured stores — KPS 61 475,494 557,651 -14.7%
CellCare stores Fr] 75 17 611,533 671,365 -8.9%
Neology healthcare centers R B8 & s 4 45,387 43,592 4.1%
Total et 154 1,438,527 1,616,571 -11.0%

(a) Referring to stores that were open for more than 300 days in both of (a) BT R E L g E 9 B ISR BR300 A AIFYE -

the two years under comparison.
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Cost of Sales and Services

The cost of sales and services of the Group primarily consists of (i)
costs of products and consumables used, representing the costs of
procuring skincare products, injection materials and other service
consumables; (ii) staff costs, representing wages, benefits and bonuses
for our business operation personnel; (iii) depreciation and
amortization charges, which primarily include depreciation and
amortization of leased properties and beauty equipment; and (iv)
operation related expenses, which primarily include property
management fees, rental expenses for short-term leases and costs for
utilities. The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s
cost of sales and services by nature for the periods indicated:
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For the year ended December 31
BZE12A318LFE

2022 2021

2022F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Products and consumables used EAERKEEA®m 280,981 306,832
Staff costs BT 292,161 298,724
Depreciation and amortization charges TERBHEER 263,484 246,702
Operation related expenses EiBEBERX 72,723 85,219
Others Hith 8,223 9,477
Total st 917,572 946,954

The costs of sales and services of the Group decreased from
RMB947.0 million in 2021 to RMB917.6 million in 2022, mainly due
to a decrease in products and consumables used and staff costs,
which were related to a decrease in services provided due to the
Pandemic. In addition, the cost of products and consumables
purchased overseas decreased due to exchange rate fluctuations
during the same period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit decreased from RMB833.8 million in 2021 to
RMB717.8 million in 2022, and the overall gross profit margin
decreased from 46.8% in 2021 to 43.9% in 2022. The decrease was
mainly due to the negative impact of the Pandemic in 2022, which
resulted in temporary closure of stores in various cities across China,
including Beijing, Shanghai, Xi‘an, Shenzhen and Changchun. The
overall gross profit margin decreased because the Group continue to
incur fixed costs such as staff costs and depreciation and amortization
charges during the period of temporary closure.
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Selling Expenses

The selling expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs, representing
wages, benefits and bonuses for our in-house sales and marketing
team; (ii) promotion and marketing expenses, primarily include service
fees paid to the third-party marketing service providers and celebrities
to promote brands and services of the Group; (iii) travelling and office
expenses incurred by our in-house sales and marketing team; (iv)
miscellaneous expenses incurred to greet customers; and (v) others,
primarily represent miscellaneous costs in relation to general sales and
marketing activities. The following table sets forth a breakdown of the
Group'’s selling expenses for the periods indicated:

HEMX

HERXEIZRE : EIKRA  BFAMHEERE
HERH TE R RAIEAL ¢ (i) & R R
TEBRENTE=ZT7EHRBEER L ANR
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M BEMMFEMMEMS  RWEM  TEHEEH—
MR E M EHREMBEERAR - TREIIAEER
PR EAFE RO SH & P SRR AR -

For the year ended December 31
BZE12A318LEFE

2022 2021

2022F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBEF T

Staff costs B I 162,335 173,338

Promotion and marketing related expenses HERE AR 36,547 33,433

Travelling and office expenses ERRFARE 25,317 31,433
Miscellaneous expenses related to customer BFRGMAERBMIEBR

services 26,335 25,211

Depreciation and amortization charges e R 14,144 11,089

Others Hith 22,550 24,960

Total st 287,228 299,464

The selling expenses of the Group decreased from RMB299.5 million
in 2021 to RMB287.2 million in 2022, primarily due to the reduction
in staff costs and travelling and office expenses, which are related to
the impact of the Pandemic.

R&D Expenses

The R&D expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs, representing
wages, benefits and bonuses for our R&D staff; and (ii) depreciation
and amortization charges. The R&D expenses increased from RMB18.0
million in 2021 to RMB31.2 million in 2022, primarily due to an
increase in staff costs resulting from an increase in our R&D
personnel headcount as we continued our R&D efforts.
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General and Administrative Expenses

The general and administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) staff
costs, representing share-based compensation expenses, wages,
benefits and bonuses for our general and administrative staff; (ii)
listing expenses; (iii) consulting and management expenses incurred in
relation to audit services, legal services, IT and back office
management system as well as other evaluation services; (iv)
depreciation and amortization charges in relation to our properties
and equipment; (v) reorganization costs; and (vi) others. The following
table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s general and
administrative expenses for the periods indicated:

B o S5 A
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—ERETERAXTEBREOBTHA  E—RRETT
BETHARMN M HMAX - T& - B RIE
AL () BRI (iDER &R RS - RRRTS - BA
B RiE e ERARAREM A RFELNES
REBRAX : (VEDERREBEEBENOTERBIHE
B WEARAE KM - TREHIAEE LA
R A — AR R AT AR ¢

For the year ended December 31

BHZ128318LLEE

2022 2021

2022F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Staff costs B TR 214,438 226,873
Listing expenses FHHAX 32,649 12,063
Consulting and management expenses BAREERX 14,731 9,913
Depreciation and amortization e i 13,347 12,043
Reorganization costs EHEMAK 7,279 —
Others Hith 12,988 11,558
Total st 295,432 272,450

The general and administrative expenses increased from RMB272.5
million in 2021 to RMB295.4 million in 2022 primarily because the
Group recorded listing expenses of RMB32.6 million in relation to the
Listing and the Global Offering in 2022.

Other Income

The other income primarily consists of (i) government grants,
representing short-term subsidies received from the local governments
in connection with the business development, rewards for financial
and employment contribution as well as tax refund; and (ii) rental
income primarily derived from the owned properties in Hainan
province. The increase in other income from RMB20.7 million in 2021
to RMB29.1 million in 2022 was primarily due to an increase in
government grants in relation to the value-added tax additional
deduction.
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Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased from RMB46.8
million in 2021 to RMB19.9 million in 2022, primarily due to the
decrease in the profit before income tax resulting from the negative
impact of the Pandemic in 2022.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the above, net profit of the Group decreased from
RMB208.3 million in 2021 to RMB110.5 million in 2022. Adjusted net
profit decreased from RMB226.7 million in 2021 to RMB157.4 million
in 2022.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group's principal use of cash was for working capital purposes as
well as for store expansion and acquisition. The main source of the
Group’s liquidity was generated from cash flows from operations.
Going forward, the Group believes that its liquidity requirements will
be satisfied with a combination of cash flows generated from
operating activities, bank facilities and net proceeds from the Global
Offering. As of December 31, 2022, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of RMB164.1 million and term deposits with initial terms
of over three months of RMB119.6 million. A significant portion of
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and term deposits are held in
RMB. As of December 31, 2022, the Group had unutilized bank
facility of RMB100.0 million.

CASH FLOWS

The table below sets out specific figures from the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statements for the years indicated:
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For the year ended December 31
BZ12B31BLEFE

2022 2021

2022F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBF T

Net cash generated from operating activities KEEEMSHE e FE 382,000 669,933
Net cash generated from/(used in) BAESE(FTA)

investing activities & F5E 53,626 (385,347)

Net cash used in financing activities BEEBMAR e FRE (432,820) (271,065)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FUHReRRESED

of the year 157,284 143,538

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRKIRENIEEHEY 164,120 157,284
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INDEBTEDNESS

As of December 31, 2022, the indebtedness of the Group mainly
included lease liabilities. The Group did not have any material
mortgages, charges, debentures, loan capital, debt securities, loans,
bank overdrafts or other similar indebtedness, finance lease or hire
purchase commitments, liabilities under acceptances (other than
normal trade bills), acceptance credits, which are either guaranteed,
unguaranteed, secured or unsecured, or guarantees or other
contingent liabilities.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total bank loans and
other borrowings by the total equity as at the end of the year. As of
December 31, 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group was 54% (as of
December 31, 2021: 58%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB25.2 million, primarily in connection with leasehold
improvements.

ASSETS PLEDGED

As of December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any major assets
pledged.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group did not make any
significant acquisitions or disposals of any subsidiaries, associated
companies or joint ventures.

EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED HEDGING

The Group mainly operates in mainland China and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures with respect to
U.S. dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognized assets and liabilities. The Group does not
hedge against any fluctuation in foreign currency.
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FUTURE PLAN OF SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
OR ACQUISITION OF ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, during the year ended December
31, 2022, the Group had no plans for any significant investment or
acquisition of capital assets in the future.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 3,707 full-time
employees. In 2022, the total employee welfare expenses amounted
to RMB697.1 million, slightly lower than RMB715.1 million in 2021,
primarily due to the impact of the Pandemic. In 2022, the Group's
equity-settled share-based compensation expenses increased to
RMB14.2 million from RMB6.3 million in 2021.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salaries,
allowances and bonuses. In particular, our physicians, therapists and
other service personnel may be remunerated with a bonus that is
assessed mainly based on their performance. We have also adopted a
number of employee restricted share plans to provide long-term
incentives for our employees who have provided outstanding services
to us, in order to incentivize and reward the eligible persons who
have contributed to our success. We have established various
“BeautyFarm Training Centers CEE MBI L))" where our service
personnel could learn service procedures and improve their service
quality. Our employees are required to participate pre-work training
and will participate in another session prior to their promotion or
when we introduce new services. In addition, our employee
development model enables us to track the career path of our
employees and recognize staff talent through comprehensive analysis
generated from clients’ feedback.
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Executive Directors

Mr. LI Yang (ZB3), aged 64, joined our Group in January 2003. He
was appointed as our Director in February 2022 and was
redesignated as our executive Director in March 2022, and as the
chairman of our Board in March 2022. Mr. Li is primarily responsible
for the overall management, business, and strategy of our Group and
oversight of the commercial suitability and sustainability of our
Group.

Prior to joining our Group, from April 1987 to March 1992, Mr. Li
was the deputy general manager at Hainan Development Construction
General Company (BFSAREAQF]). From April 1992 to August
1996, he was the general manager at Hainan Real Estate
Development General Company (R4 EEZ A F]). Immediately
prior to joining the Group, he was the deputy director at the
State-owned Assets Management Office of Hainan Province (84 &
BEEEBRRAE).

Mr. Li has also served as a director for a number of our principal
subsidiaries. Since August 2006, he has been an executive director of
Shanghai Beauty Farm Development Co., Ltd. (F/EEERAEERERE
B A7], “Shanghai Beauty Farm Development”) (PRC). Since April
2004, he has been the chairman of the board of Shanghai Beauty
Farm. Since July 2010, he has been an executive director of Shanghai
Yigao Industrial Co., Ltd. (E/B2=EZEABR AT, “Shanghai Yigao”).
Since November 2017, he has been an executive director of Shanghai
Xiukeer Clinic Co., Ltd. (LE/BFARPIZEER AT, “Shanghai
Xiukeer").

In May 1987, Mr. Li obtained his master’'s degree in engineering from
the Department of Electronic Engineering of RWTH Aachen University
(BT ¥R in Aachen, Germany. Mr. Li is the father of Ms. LI
Fangyu, the non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. LIAN Songyong (E#23k), aged 52, joined our Group as our
director and general manager of Shanghai Beauty Farm in November
2015. Mr. Lian was appointed as our Director in February 2022 and
was redesignated as our executive Director in March 2022, and as
vice chairman of our Board in March 2022. He is primarily responsible
for the overall management of our Group, and decision-making in
respect of major matters such as overall strategies.

Mr. Lian has over ten years of experience in the cosmetics industry.
Prior to joining our Group, from October 2004 to December 2008,
Mr. Lian was the deputy general manager at Henan Plastic Surgery
Hospital Co., Ltd. (A EEFEERER AR A F]). From January 2009
to August 2015, he was the general manager at Beijing Mansimei
Medical Technology Co., Ltd. (Jt RE BEBEERIMER A ).

2 T v AR B

B=E

WITES

TR h A 645% 0 N2003F1 B IMAREE o 4th R
2022F2 ARRIAEE - R2022F3 AT AR
TESE UH20NF3ZTAESEELIE =
FETTEERAEENEEETE EENREBEUAR
EERAEEMNEEEREMAFENE -

IAKREB R - R1987F4E199263 8 - =HhiE
BAEEEARBBATIMNEREIE - M1992F4A %
1996F8H ' thAEHAFHER RN AR BLRE -
BEENAREEZA  HASHARBEEEETENR
NENEBE -

FRETREMEROEENBRARILEES - B
2006 F8 A b A EBEBEHBEEAZEABRA
A EEEZBERERRD(FR)MNNITES - &
2004F4R 1 A LBEEHRMNETSERE -
B2010F7AE fhh bEkmEEERAA(E
RS ) WITES -

H2017F 1M AR A LEBFARPIZHERAF
(TLBFARDMWATES - R1987F5H  F%
HEREEGSRNDRTIEARBEFIRATIZR
L8 - FRERARFFATEETFTHIRLL
ZRH

BEAKELE - 525% 0 N2015F 11 AINAREBEE
TEEENREESHRELE - BEER202292 A
EZTAES M0NF3IAERATAENITES
WH202F3ABZ T AEECRIETR -MEESH
EAREENBETIELBEBKSEAETHIRE

HEEEMMCMRITERER TFE&R - RIMALRSE
E AT F22004410 8 £20084F 128 » #E 4 A
BBV ENBRARDFMNEBLIE - R2009F 1
AZE2015F88 At REREEZFMARA
AR ARALIE o



38 Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
e AR B

Mr. Lian has also served in various roles for a number of our principal
subsidiaries. Since September 2015, he has been the vice chairman of
the board of directors and general manager of Shanghai Beauty Farm.
He is also currently a manager of Shanghai Yigao and Shanghai
Xiukeer.

Mr. Lian obtained his master’s degree in business management from
Tsinghua University (j& % X&) in Beijing, PRC in January 2003.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAI Feng (Z#£), aged 56, was appointed as our Director in
February 2022 and was redesignated as our non-executive Director
since March 2022. Mr. Zhai joined our Group in December 2013 as a
director of Shanghai Beauty Farm. In this capacity, he is primarily
responsible for formulating the Company’s strategies and supervising
the Company’s operations and development.

Mr. Zhai has over 29 vyears of experience in investment and
management industry. From July 1991 to November 2012, Mr. Zhai
worked at Procter & Gamble (China) Sales Co. Ltd. (B2 (hE) HIR
2 A]) with his last position as a president of sales in Greater China.
Mr. Zhai was a managing director at Shanghai Panxin Mezzanine
Investment Management Company Limited (/B2 EREREEES
R A 7R]) from January 2013 to December 2018. From October 2014
to July 2019, he served as director of Weihai Guangwei Composites
Co., Ltd. (BUBHXBEAMERMHBRAF), which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300699). From December
2015 to March 2020, Mr. Zhai was a director of Shaanxi Tourism
Culture Industry Holding Co. Ltd. (PEPEIR# XL EERHBRAR)
(“Shaanxi Tourism”), a company listed on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations Co., Ltd. (stock code: 870432). From June
2018 to January 2020, he served as director of Beijing Hualian
Department Store Co., Ltd (3t FEH:EEMR M AR A a]), which is
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000882).
Mr. Zhai has served as a director of CIIC Guanaitong (Shanghai)
Technology Co., Ltd. (FEBE®E (LF) BEKRHAER AR (stock
code: 871282), listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations Co., Ltd., since November 2016. Since August 2015,
Mr. Zhai has been a director of Manpowergroup Greater China
Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2180),
and was subsequently re-designated as a non-executive director in
January 2019. Since September 2020, Mr. Zhai has been a director of
Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (EREEEEAFMRAA]), a hair
transplant and treatment healthcare service provider which is listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2279), and was subsequently
re-designated as a non-executive director in June 2021. Mr. Zhai has
been employed by companies affiliated with CITIC PE and does not
participate in the day-to-day operations and management of the
Group.
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Mr. Zhai obtained his bachelor’s degree in environmental engineering
from Tongji University ([ KXEZ), the PRC, in July 1991.

Mr. Zhai was a director of Shaanxi Tourism Cultural Industry
Development Co. Ltd (BRARBEX/ICEZERKHERAF), a
company established in the PRC which was deregistered on June 30,
2016 as a result of merger by absorption by Shaanxi Tourism.
Mr. Zhai was a director of Panxin Rongtai (Shanghai) Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (EE®#K(LH)EETEBERLF), a
company established in the PRC and was deregistered on January 29,
2019. Mr. Zhai confirmed that each of the above companies was
solvent prior to its deregistration and was deregistered as it had not
commenced business since establishment or had ceased to conduct
business. He further confirmed that, as of the Latest Practicable Date,
no claims have been made against him and he was not aware of any
threatened or potential claims made against him and there are no
outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the deregistration of
each of the above companies.

Mr. GENG lJiaqi (BX® %), aged 52, joined our Group in December
2013 and was subsequently appointed as our Director in February
2022 and was redesignated as our non-executive Director in March
2022. He is primarily responsible for decision-making in respect of
major matters such as formulating overall strategies, hiring Company
executives, advancing mergers and acquisitions, as well as managing
corporate financing.

Mr. Geng has over 19 years of experience in investment and
management industry. Since October 2020, Mr. Geng has been an
investment director of Beijing Panmao Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (At REHEIEEEEERAF]). In addition, since September 2020,
he has been a director of Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (EREE
E£BEERAF]), a hair transplant and treatment healthcare service
provider which is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2279),
and was subsequently re-designated as a non-executive director in
June 2021. Since September 2022, he has been a director of Inner
Mongolia Prairie Red Sun Food Co., Ltd. (AT ERLAAGE RGN
BBRAF]), a company primarily engaged in the R&D, production, and
sale of condiments. Mr. Geng has been employed by companies
affiliated with CITIC PE and does not participate in the day-to-day
operations and management of the Group.
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From April 2005 to August 2008, Mr. Geng was an investment
manager at Actis Investment Beijing Representative Office (HEfi%E
ERARERE). From September 2008 to March 2010, Mr. Geng was a
senior investment manager of Beijing Hony Future Investment Advisor
Ltd. (tRaLBEFILERBMBRAF]). From December 2011 to
December 2018, he was an investment director of Shanghai Panxin
Equity Investment Management Limited (/B2 {ZBREREETEER
‘A@]). He was a director of Wangfujing Group Co., Ltd., (3t REFFH
BE(E£E)BRMHAERRAT), a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600859), from December 2016 to December
2019. From January 2019 to September 2020, Mr. Geng has also
been an investment director of Tianjin Panmao Enterprise
Management Limited Liability Partnership (KZZEMEEBRAB L%
(ER&R®)).

Mr. Geng obtained his bachelor’s degree in accounting & finance and
business administration & management from Oxford Brookes
University, the United Kingdom, in 1996 and his master’s degree in
business administration from State University of New Jersey, the U.S.,
in January 2001.

Ms. LI Fangyu (Z5 ) (with former name LI Fanggian (Z75 %)),
aged 33, joined our Group as a business manager in May 2016. She
was appointed as our Director in February 2022 and was
redesignated as our non-executive Director in March 2022, and in this
capacity she is primarily responsible for the overall management,
business, and strategy of our Group and oversight of the commercial
suitability and sustainability of our Group.

Ms. Li obtained her undergraduate degree in science majoring in
management from the London School of Economics and Political
Science (fRZHHUALLEZPT) in London, United Kingdom in July 2012.

Ms. Li is the daughter of Mr. Li Yang, the Chairman of the
Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Mingchao (G2 #8i#), aged 45, was duly appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company since the Listing
in January 2023 and is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Fan has over 15 vyears of experience in arbitration and
institutional management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Fan has
been a lecturer and an associate professor for over 10 years, and
once served as the deputy director of the International Affairs Office
at Shanghai University of Political Science and Law (_E/&BUIEZER),
primarily responsible for teaching international private law,
international commercial arbitration and other courses, as well as for
the planning, design and implementation of international exchange
projects. From February 2016 to June 2021, he was served as the
Director of Arbitration and ADR for North Asia of the International
Chamber of Commerce, and was the chief representative of its
Shanghai Representative Office, primarily responsible for the
promotion of ICC arbitration and ADR in 19 countries and regions, as
well as for coordination with the ICC national and regional
committees in the aforementioned jurisdictions. Since July 2021, he
has been the general deputy director of the Shanghai Arbitration
Commission (/&£ Z & €). Since August 2019, he has served as
chairman of the Arbitration Commission of the Chinese Football
Association (FEIREKIBEHEHZEZEE) He is also currently an
arbitrator of the Court of Arbitration for Sports (BEIFREEE (HELFT), the
chairman of the Mainland China Committee of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators (EBEFHFHEHEESehBE AKEZE®) and a member
of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators.

Mr. Fan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in international law from East
China University of Politics and Law (FEEREEAZ) in Shanghai, PRC
in July 2000. He further obtained his master’'s degree in international
commercial law from the University of Manchester in the United
Kingdom in November 2002. He obtained his doctor’'s degree in
international law from East China University of Politics and Law (¥ 5
BAKE) in Shanghai, PRC in December 2012.
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Mr. LIU Teng (2/B), aged 54, was duly appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company since the Listing
in January 2023 and is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Liu has extensive experience in financial management and
investment banking. He worked at China Ping An Insurance (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd. from June 1999 to September 2007. He worked at
Taikang Asset Management (Hong Kong) Company Limited from
August 2008 to October 2010. He then worked as an executive
director in China Orient International Asset Management Limited from
February 2012 to March 2015. From October 2015 to September
2018, he worked at China Universal Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Company Limited with his last position held as a deputy chief
executive officer. Since September 2018, he has been the chairman
and SFC licensed responsible officer at China Eagle Asset
Management Limited, primarily responsible for overall investment
research, compliance risk control, and financial operations.

Since December 2020, Mr. Liu has also been an independent
non-executive director at Raily Aesthetic Medicine International
Holdings, a medical beauty company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2135), where he is the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee.

Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Arts in Professional Accounting and
Information Systems from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2004. He was admitted as a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2006, and became a
certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in February 2007.

Mr. JIANG Hua (GIL#), aged 61, was duly appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company since the Listing
in January 2023 and is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Jiang has over 30 years of experience in academics and plastic
surgery. Prior to joining the Group, he was the director of plastic
surgery at The Second Affiliated Hospital of the Second Military
Medical University (56 —E 8 K2 —KiBEFT) (currently known as
Shanghai Changzheng Hospital (/8 &KAEERT)). Since 2019, Mr. Jiang
has been a chief physician and professor at Shanghai East Hospital
(L8R ERR).

Mr. Jiang received his bachelor’s degree in clinical medicine from the
Second Military Medical University of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army (=& KXZ) in Shanghai, PRC in July 1985. He further
received his postgraduate’s degree in medicine from the National
University of Singapore in Singapore in January 2000. Since May
1999, he has been certified as a qualified surgeon by the People’s
Liberation Army General Logistics Department.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Yang (ZB3), aged 64, is our executive Director and chairman
of the Board of Directors. For further details, please see the
paragraphs headed “Directors and Senior Management — Directors
— Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. LIAN Songyong (E#JK), aged 52, is our executive Director,
vice chairman of the Board of Directors, and our chief executive
officer. For further details, please see the paragraphs headed
“Directors and Senior Management — Directors — Executive
Directors” in this section.

Ms. ZHOU Min (A#), aged 54, joined our Group as our chief
financial officer since March 2015 and has served as a joint company
secretary since March 2021. She is primarily responsible for financial
planning of our Group, including financial accounting and
management of the Company’s financial and legal affairs, merger and
acquisitions, as well as management of various departments, such as
the listing department.

Ms. Zhou has over 20 years of experience in financial management of
chain enterprises, investment and acquisitions. Prior to joining our
Group, Ms. Zhou Min served in the supermarket business department
of Bailian Group Co., Ltd. as well as the head of the financial
department of Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd. for more than
ten years. Bailian Group Co., Ltd. was at the time listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (600827.SH), and Lianhua Supermarket
Holdings Co., Ltd. is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 980).

Ms. Zhou obtained her master’s degree in business administration
from the Arizona State University W.P. Carey School of Business (o2
FIZ BN 7 KE2SIEEERe) in July 2013. Since December 2004, she
has been a certified public accountant, recognized by the Provincial
Department of Finance (& BfEEZ). Since April 2007, she has been
certified as a senior accountant by the Provincial Human Resources
and Social Security Department (& &% AtLEEFT). Since June 2009,
Ms. Zhou has been certified as a tax agent by the State
Administration of Taxation (AR HE#H4/3).
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. ZHOU Min (F#), aged 54, was appointed as a joint company
secretary of our Company on March 24, 2022. Ms. Zhou is also a
member of the senior management of our Company. For further
details, please see the paragraphs headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Senior Management” in this section.

Ms. KWOK Siu Ying Sarah (E8Jk#), aged 39, was appointed as a
joint company secretary of our Company on March 24, 2022.
Ms. Kwok is currently a manager of corporate services of Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited. She has over seven years of
experience in the corporate services industry.

Ms. Kwok obtained a bachelor's degree in Business Studies from
University College Dublin, National University of Ireland in June 2012
and a master’s degree in Corporate Governance from Hong Kong
Metropolitan University (/& #8€ X2) in November 2017. She has
been an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and an associate member of The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom since 2018. She is also an affiliate
member of The Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners.

Ms. Kwok is currently the company secretary of NVC International
Holdings Limited, a Main Board listed company in Hong Kong (stock
code: 2222) and the joint company secretary of Shanghai Bio-heart
Biological Technology Co., Ltd., a Main Board listed company in Hong
Kong (stock code: 2185) and Shanghai HeartCare Medical Technology
Corporation Limited, a Main Board listed company in Hong Kong
(stock code: 6609).

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed herein, as at the date of this annual report, the
Directors confirm that no information is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.

COMPANY'S CULTURE

The Board firmly believes that corporate culture is the foundation for
the Group’s long-term business, economic success, and sustainable
growth. A strong culture enables the Company to deliver sustained
performance and fulfill its role as a responsible corporate citizen. By
promoting its operating cornerstone, vision, and core values, the
Company has continuously strengthened its organizational capacity,
providing a robust organizational guarantee for its business
development.

During 2022, the Company continued to strengthen its cultural
framework by focusing on the following:

o Vision: Leading the way in beauty and health!

o Operating Cornerstone: Continuously pursuing the long-term
growth of the Company, we remain committed to fostering
long-lasting relationships with our valued customers.

We firmly believe that building long-term relationships requires
trust as its foundation. We are against providing customers
with unsuitable products and services for the sake of meeting
KPIs, and we do not pursue short-term or one-time large sales.
Instead, we focus on customer needs and work with them to
provide products and services that meet their requirements. By
establishing long-term customer relationships in this way, we
increase customer loyalty and achieve sustainable growth for the
Company’s business and performance.

o Core Values: The core values of our Group are customer
orientation, collaborative synergy, continuous innovation as well
as sharing success through joint efforts!

Customer orientation: also known as customer demand
orientation, it means that our products, operations and services
all focus on satisfying the needs of our customers or users, and
we can provide our customers with customized and
differentiated services.
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Synergy: The most important synergy of Beauty Farm is the
synergy between the three major businesses of traditional
beauty services, aesthetic medical services, and subhealth
assessment and intervention services. The Company continues
to improve the effective coordination of the three business
teams to provide customers with one-stop services and
comprehensive beauty and health management.

Continuous innovation: It means that as the external
environment and internal resources change, the Company has
to upgrade and iterate in all aspects in order to match the
internal and external changes, including innovation in products
and services, business model, organizational structure and many
other aspects.

Working and sharing together: It refers to the
struggler-oriented, and the Company allocates resources to the
outstanding employees and successful teams with excellent
performance.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and
requires all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are
required to attend orientation and training programs so that they may
better understand our corporate culture, structure and policies, learn
relevant laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In
addition, from time to time, the Company will invite external experts
to provide training to our management personnel to improve their
relevant knowledge and management skills. In addition, in order to
better realize the Company’s organizational management and
decision-making implementation through the above-mentioned
corporate culture, the Company will implement its corporate culture in
remuneration determination, assessment and evaluation and vocational
training.

The Company regularly holds employee representative meetings,
seminars, annual meetings and monthly work meetings. Through its
online announcements and other means, the Company conveys its
values, development direction, performance expectations and strategic
goals to its core employees, and delivers expected results, evaluation
criteria. and information and resources required to achieve the
expected results to its employees.

In addition, in order to ensure a dual way communication, the
Company’s senior managers regularly visit the front-line stores in
various regions to communicate face-to-face with its employees,
understand their thoughts, listen to their suggestions for the
Company’s development, and encourage them to share ideas.
Employees who make actual achievements will be rewarded to form a
cyclical process of bottom-up participation, improvement and
continuous development.
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The Board considers that the corporate culture and the operating
cornerstone, vision, core values and strategy of the Group are
aligned.

More information about the Company’s vision, mission and values is
available in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Business Review”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. Guided by the above
corporate culture, the Company has adopted the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code as its own corporate governance
practices.

In order to strengthen information disclosure and transparency, the
Company regularly publishes financial reports, operating conditions
and other information, fully discloses them to Shareholders,
employees, business partners and the public, in order to improve
information transparency.

Since the Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on January 16, 2023, the CG Code was not applicable to
the Company during the Reporting Period. To the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Company had complied with all code provisions set
out in the CG Code since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairperson
should at least annually hold one meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on January 16, 2023,
there had not been any meeting held by the chairman with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Reporting Period.

The chairman intends to hold at least one meeting per year with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the
Directors and the Group’s senior management who, because of his/
her office or employment, is likely to possess inside information in
relation to Company or its securities.

Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors, they have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report. In addition, the
Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the Model Code by
the senior management of the Group since the Listing Date and up to
the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Yang (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. LIAN Songyong (Chief Executive Officer,
Vice Chairman of the Board)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAI Feng
Mr. GENG Jiaqi
Ms. LI Fangyu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Mingchao
Mr. LIU Teng
Mr. JIANG Hua

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no any relationship
(including, financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) between the Board members.

HERXZBRESTH

AR HRMBELETUAEREAFEREERAE
BeRERABEEARABEAFNTRTE  MZ
SEENAKESREREABREBB K TR A
EEEEEMARRREESFNABHEES

RMEREEELARSHAR HwME®IAE LT
PHEEEAFRARN - FETRETR - e -
BEMEHEEERFRBEY  SLAQBMA - K
SEHSAEEEYEEANETRETRNGERN -

E=g
BEAFROS EEEMMANTES  Z4%
WITEER=EWUINTEFAN -

MITEE
TRt (EFETE)
BINKEE (BEHITE EFEFTE)

FMITESR
BB E

LIS S et
FHRLL

BYIFMITES
BHEBEAE

2P & £
TESLAE

REIEENEEABERNAFRIEZTRSNER

B—6i -

BAFHRARESEI  EFTEKE Z BB EEFIRE
7 (BEIM® - 27 REBXEMER MEHEBE) -



Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board at all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and the appointment of independent
non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
Among the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. LIU Teng
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, Mr.
Li Yang serves as the chairman of the Company and Mr. Lian
Songyong serves as the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Company had fully complied with the principles and Code Provision
C.2.1 as set out in the CG Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for, and has general powers for, the
management and conduct of our business. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has
established three Board committees including the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The
Company plans to establish the Environmental, Social, and
Governance (“ESG”) Committee under the Board to guide and
manage ESG related matters of the Company. The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. All Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company recognizes that Board independence is key to good
corporate governance. The Company has in place effective
mechanisms that underpin an independent Board and independent
views. The current composition of the Board, comprising more than
one third of the of the independent non-executive Directors and more
than two third of the members of the Audit Committee are
independent non-executive Directors, which comply with the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are all
chaired by independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee of the Company must strictly abide by the
Nomination Policy and the independence assessment criteria for the
nomination and appointment of independent non-executive Directors
set out in the Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director
is also required to notify the Company as soon as possible of any
changes in his personal information that may have a material impact
on his independence. The Nomination Committee is authorized to
assess the independence of all independent non-executive Directors
annually in accordance with the independence criteria set out in the
Listing Rules to ensure that they can continue to make independent
judgments.

The remuneration of independent non-executive Directors are subject
to a regular review to maintain competitiveness and commensurate
with their responsibilities and workload. The independence of each
independent non-executive Director is assessed upon his/her
appointment and annually.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at the
Board meetings and abstain from voting, where appropriate. External
independent professional advice is available to all Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, whenever deemed necessary. The
independent non-executive Directors have consistently demonstrated
strong commitment and the ability to devote sufficient time to
discharge their responsibilities at the Board.

The Company has also established channels through formal and
informal means whereby independent non-executive Directors can
express their views in an open manner, and in a confidential manner,
should circumstances requires.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing over one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors and senior management of the Company for
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development and attend related trainings as required to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director should receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

During the Reporting Period, all Directors, namely Mr. Li Yang,
Mr. Lian Songyong, Mr. Zhai Feng, Mr. Geng Jiaqgi, Ms. Li Fangyu,
Mr. Fan Mingchao, Mr. Liu Teng and Mr. Jiang Hua were regularly
briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws, rules
and regulations. All Directors have been updated with the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. In addition,
continuing briefing and professional development to Directors will be
arranged whenever necessary. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses and required to
submit a signed training records to the Company on an annual basis.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors of the Company has entered into
a contract with the Company which contains provisions in relation to,
among other things, compliance of relevant laws and regulations,
observance of the Articles of Association and provisions on
arbitration.

The initial term for their respective appointment letters shall
commence from the Listing Date and continue for a period of three
years subject always to re-election as and when required under the
Articles of Association, until terminated in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party giving to
the other not less than 30 days’ prior notice in writing.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group (excluding
agreements expiring or determinable by any member of the Group
within one vyear without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation).

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at an annual general meeting of the Company. In accordance with
the Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for
election by Shareholders at the next following general meeting of the
Company after appointment and any new Director appointed as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
the Shareholders at the next following annual general meeting of the
Company after appointment. The procedures and process of
appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set out in the
Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, monitoring and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-election and
succession planning of Directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors.

Mr. Geng Jiagi, Ms. Li Fangyu and Mr. Fan Mingchao will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract that is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various Board
committees. In accordance with the relevant applicable laws and
regulations, the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, we have
established an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”), a
Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), and a
Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”), for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company's affairs. Each of these committees
is established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of each of these committees are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. The Audit Committee consists of Mr. Liu Teng, Mr. Fan
Mingchao and Ms. Li Fangyu, with Mr. Liu Teng being the
chairperson of the committee.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to assist our Board in
providing an independent view of our financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system, overseeing the audit
process and performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by our Board which includes, amongst other things:

o proposing to our Board the appointment and replacement of
external audit firms;

o supervising the implementation of our internal audit system;

o liaising between our internal audit department and external
auditors;

o reviewing our financial information and related disclosures; and

o other duties conferred by our Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Fan
Mingchao, Mr. Jiang Hua and Mr. Zhai Feng with Mr. Fan Mingchao
being the chairperson of the committee.

The primary function of the Remuneration Committee is to develop
remuneration policies of our Directors, evaluate the performance,
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of our individual executive Directors and senior management and
evaluate and make recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements which includes, amongst other things:

o establishing, reviewing and making recommendations to our
Directors on our policy and structure concerning remuneration
of our Directors and senior management;

o determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of
each Director and members of senior management;

o reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by our
Directors from time to time; and

o other duties conferred by our Board.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are decided by the Board with reference to the
recommendation given by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the individual performance and comparable market
statistics. The emoluments payable to each Director and senior
management of the Group are covered by their respective service
contracts.

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director for the
Reporting Period are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Remuneration by band of the senior management (including the
executive Directors) of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out
below:

REMUNERATION BANDS (RMB)
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TOTAL 3
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Company has established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Fan
Mingchao, Mr. Jiang Hua and Mr. Lian Songyong, with Mr. Fan
Mingchao being the chairperson of the committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to our Board in relation to the appointment and
removal of Directors which includes, amongst other things:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of our Board on
a regular basis and making recommendations to our Board
regarding any proposed changes;

o identifying, selecting or making recommendations to our Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o assessing the independence of our independent non-executive
Directors;
o making recommendations to our Board on relevant matters

relating to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of our
Directors; and

o other duties conferred by our Board.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning board
diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption. In identifying and
selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria as set out
in the Nomination Policy that are necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve board diversity, where appropriate,
before making recommendation to the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) in accordance with the CG Code. The Director
Nomination Policy sets out the selection criteria and process and the
Board succession planning considerations in relation to nomination
and appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business.

The Nomination Committee shall identify, consider and recommend to
the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors and to make
recommendations to the Shareholders. The ultimate responsibility for
selection and appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
nomination, appointment of new Directors in accordance with the
following procedures and process: (a) the Nomination Committee shall
first review and assess factors relating to the diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to professional experience, skill, knowledge
and length of service, gender, age, cultural and education
background, and give consideration to the candidate’s willingness to
devote adequate time to the Board and independence of each
independent non-executive directors based on the requirements of the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time; and (b) the Nomination
Committee shall then nominate suitable candidates to the Board
based on the then-current and anticipated future leadership needs of
the Company, with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.
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For the re-election of Directors at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring Directors, including its
attendance at Board meetings, Board committee meetings and general
meetings (if applicable), and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board. The Nominating Committee shall require
the nominee to submit updated biographical information and the
consent to be re-elected as a Director; and should review and
determine whether retiring Directors still meet the criteria for Director
selection.

The Nominating Committee shall then make recommendations to the
Board on the re-election of Directors. The Nomination Committee shall
also monitor and review the implementation of the nomination policy,
as appropriate from time to time, and will report to the Board
annually.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee (or the Board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of
board members, and shall disclose the policy on diversity or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report.

The Board seek to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. We have adopted
a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) to enhance the
effectiveness of our Board and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, in
reviewing and assessing suitable candidates to serve as a Director of
the Company, our nomination committee will consider a range of
diversity perspectives with reference to our Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background and professional experience and
knowledge. Furthermore, our nomination committee is responsible for
reviewing the diversity of our Board, reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time, developing and reviewing measurable
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and monitoring
the progress on achieving these measurable objectives in order to
ensure that the Board Diversity Policy remains effective. The board
diversity policy will be reviewed by the Nomination Committee
annually.
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Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
but not limited to overall business management, finance and
accounting, research and development, and investment. They obtained
degrees in various majors including engineering, business
management, science, accounting and finance, international law, and
clinical medicine.

As at the date of this annual report, our Board consists of seven male
members and one female member with 1 Director of age 31 to 40
years old, 1 Director of age 41 to 50 years old, 5 Directors of age 51
to 60 years old and 1 Director of age 61 to 70 years old. Our
Company has reviewed the membership, structure and composition of
the Board, and is of the opinion that the structure of the Board is
reasonable, and the experiences and skills of the Directors in various
aspects and fields can enable our Company to maintain a high
standard of operation.

The Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation and will continue to take steps to promote gender
diversity at the Board of our Company. Going forward, we will strive
to achieve gender balance of the Board through certain measures to
be implemented by our nomination committee in accordance with our
board diversity policy. In particular, we will actively identify female
individuals suitably qualified to become our Board members and we
aim to achieve a target of 20% female representation in our Board
based on the actual needs of our Board and when suitable candidates
are available. To further ensure gender diversity of our Board in a
long run, our Group will also identify and select several female
individuals with a diverse range of skills, experience and knowledge in
different fields from time to time, and maintain a list of such female
individuals who possess qualities to become our Board members,
which will be reviewed by our nomination committee periodically in
order to develop a pipeline of potential successors to our Board to
promote gender diversity of our Board.
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WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

As a beauty company, the proportion of female employees of Beauty
Farm is as high as over 90%. The Group has made continuous efforts
to pursue equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination, and is
committed to creating a fair, respectful and inclusive working
environment. We make decisions on hiring, training, opportunities for
advancement, dismissal and retirement policies without regard to the
age, sex, marital status, pregnancy, family status, disability, race,
color, ancestry, national or ethnic origin, national origin, religion or
any other non-work related factors. Even though the nature of the
industry and the business scope of the Company generally employ
more female employees, gender does not affect how we treat our
employees. Both male and female employees receive corresponding
treatment according to their rank, seniority and performance.

The construction of female leadership is a core mission that Beauty
Farm has always adhered to. Through its business growth, Beauty
Farm continues to drive the development of female employees,
helping them to complete self-improvement and build a sense of
self-identity. On the basis of helping them achieve good career
development and economic independence, they can obtain family and
social status, delivering positive influence to wider female group in
the society. The Group will aim to achieve the gender diversity in
workforce. For further details of gender ratio, please refer to the
disclosure in the ESG report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed:

o the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance,
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors;

o the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report; and

o training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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BOARD MEETINGS, COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Company became listed on January 16, 2023. The Company
adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, at least four
times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Both the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee shall meet
at least once every year; and the Audit Committee shall meet at least
twice a year. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
Board and committee meetings to provide all Directors or committee
members with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting. The agenda and accompanying board
papers are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at least
three days before the intended date of the meeting to ensure that
they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting. When Directors or committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
chairperson of the board or the committee members prior to the
meeting.

Minutes of meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretaries with
copies circulated to relevant Board or Board Committee for comments
and records. Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Board or committee members and dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee
meeting are sent to the relevant board or committee members for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on January 16, 2023,
two Board meetings, no Audit Committee meeting and no
Remuneration Committee meeting were held during the Reporting
Period.

GENERAL MEETING

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on January 16, 2023,
no general meeting was held during the Reporting Period.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the
Group maintains sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems, and make annual review on the effectiveness of such
systems, in order to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the
Group's assets at all times. The Audit Committee assists the Board of
Directors in leading management and supervising the design,
implementation, and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company has a clearly defined organizational structure for its risk
management and internal control systems, with appropriate division of
responsibilities, authority limits, reporting mechanisms, and
accountability to identify and manage potential risks and safeguard
the assets of the Group. The Company has developed and adopted
multiple risk management procedures and guidelines. It also regularly
reviews the implementation of its major business processes, including
procurement and sales, operational management, financial reporting,
medical safety, and information security, among others.

The Company’s internal audit department is responsible for
independently auditing the adequacy and effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems and providing findings and
improvement suggestions to the Audit Committee. As of the date of
this annual report, the Audit Committee has reviewed and confirmed
to the Board of Directors that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are effective and sufficient. With the support
of the Audit Committee and its report, the Board of Directors has
reviewed these systems for the year ended December 31, 2022, and
believes they are effective.
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In the future, we will continue to regularly review and improve such
internal control policies, measures and procedures. In order to further
improve our corporate governance practices and the effectiveness of
our internal control procedures, we will further monitor internal
controls that are highly relevant to our business development, such as
medical compliance, franchise control, information confidentiality and
data security.

In respect of system construction, the Company will continue to take
the following measures: 1) refining the Articles of Association, and
adjusting the organizational structure, division of powers and
responsibilities, and decision-making procedures in a timely manner;
2) establishing and improving internal rules and regulations,
formulating various management systems, clarifying the
responsibilities, work procedures and assessment standards of each
position according to its actual business needs to ensure the
standardization of management processes; 3) establishing a risk
management and internal control system, including the formulation of
risk identification, assessment, early warning and response
mechanisms to ensure the stability of the Group’s business activities,
and establishing an internal control system to standardize business
behavior and prevent manipulation and fraud.

In respect of anti-corruption, we have formulated specific policies and
procedures. The management and Audit Committee oversees the
design and implementation of anti-corruption policies and procedures.
Relevant policies are set out in the Employee Handbook and Code of
Conduct. We do not tolerate bribery of any kind. We have also
established whistleblower procedures, dedicated hotlines and email
addresses to receive named or anonymous corruption reports and
rigorous investigation procedures. If employees are found to violate
relevant anti-corruption policies, their employment will be terminated.
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In respect of process control, we will further improve the store
opening, new franchisee selection, franchisee exit, information data
acquisition, transfer and use process, and control the above processes
through the information system, and make timely adjustments.

In respect of organizational construction, we will further optimize the
organizational structure. By adjusting the functions and structures of
the established Medical Quality Department, Medical Development
Support Department, Franchise Operation, Franchise Integration and
Data Support Center, we will strengthen our internal management
and risk control while maintaining stable business growth.

Our Directors are of the view that our enhanced internal control
system is adequate and effective for our current operations. For the
year ended December 31, 2022, the Company was not subject to any
government investigation or litigation with respect to claims or
allegations of monetary and non-monetary bribery activities, and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, none of our employees were
involved in any bribery or kickback arrangements.

The Company has designated responsible personnel to monitor our
ongoing compliance with relevant laws and regulations that govern
our business operations, and to oversee the implementation of any
necessary measures. Meanwhile, we plan to provide our Directors,
senior management and relevant employees with continuing training
programs and updates regarding the relevant laws and regulations on
a regular basis, with a view to proactively identifying any concerns or
issues relating to any potential non-compliance. We believe that we
have established adequate internal procedures, systems and controls in
relation to anti-corruption and anti-bribery law compliance.
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to internal procedures and policy so as to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure and
publication of such information is appropriately approved, and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made.

The Board is responsible for approving the policy on disclosure of
inside information which aims at providing guiding principles,
practices and procedures to assist employees and officers of the
Group in (i) relaying inside information to the Board to enable it to
make timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary; and (ii)
communicating with the Group’s stakeholders, in ways which are in
compliance with the SFO and the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for reviewing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Reporting
Period.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

The Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants and Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor as the
auditors for the Reporting Period. A statement by
PricewaterhouseCoopers about their reporting responsibilities for the
financial statements is included in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.

Details of the fees paid or payable to the Company’s auditors, in
respect of the audit and non-audit services for the Reporting Period
are set out in the table below:
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Annual audit services: 2,700
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FERE - O

Total 15,682
@5t

(1) The non-audit services conducted by the auditor mainly include tax related
services.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

The Company engaged Ms. Kwok Siu Ying Sarah, the manager of
Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited (a
company secretarial service provider), as a joint company secretary of
the Company. Ms. Zhou Min, is another joint company secretary of
the Company.

Ms. Zhou, the chief financial officer and a joint company secretary of
the Company, is the primary corporate contact person of Ms. Kwok
at the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Ms. Zhou
Min and Ms. Kwok Siu Ying Sarah undertook not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update their skills and knowledge
during the Reporting Period.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed by the chairman of that meeting for each
substantially separate issue at Shareholder meetings, including
nomination and election of individual directors. All resolutions put
forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
Shareholder meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any one or more members deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General
meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. However, Shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
Article 12.3 are set out above.

For proposal of a person for election as Director, pursuant to Article
16.4 of the Articles of Association, no person shall, unless
recommended by the Board, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting unless during the period, which shall
be at least seven days, commencing no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election
and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting, there has been given to the Secretary notice in writing by a
member of the Company (not being the person to be proposed),
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is
given, of his intention to propose such person for election and also
notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected.

Inquiries to the Board

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to
the Company as follows:

Address:  Unit 1206, 12th Floor, No. 1089 Dongdaming Road,
Hongkou District, Shanghai, PRC
Email: ir@beautyfarm.com.cn

Telephone: 021-60953299

Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and
investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The Company adopted the shareholders communication policy, which
set out the framework the Company has put in place to promote
effective communication with Shareholders so as to enable them to
engage actively with the Company and exercise their rights as
Shareholders in an informed manner. The shareholders
communication policy will be reviewed on a regular basis by the
Board of the Company.

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include (i) the publication of interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements; (i) the
annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting providing a
forum for Shareholders to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; (iii) updated and key information of the Group available on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv) the
Company’s website offering communication channel between the
Company and its stakeholders; (v) the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all share
registration matters; and (vi) convening investor meeting and/or
analyst briefings, which led by our investor relations team with
existing and potential investors. The Company considers that the
shareholders’ communication policy was effectively conducted since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We currently do not have a formal dividend policy or a fixed dividend
payout ratio. Our Board may declare dividends in the future after
taking into account our results of operations, financial condition, cash
requirements and availability and other factors as it may deem
relevant at such time. Any declaration and payment as well as the
amount of dividends will be subject to our constitutional documents
and the Cayman Companies Law. In addition, our Directors may from
time to time pay such interim dividends as our Board considers to be
justified by our profits and overall financial requirements, or special
dividends of such amounts and on such dates as they deem
appropriate. No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of
our profits, retained earnings or share premium, subject to a solvency
test being satisfied.
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Future dividend payments will also depend upon the availability of
dividends received from our subsidiaries in China. PRC laws require
that dividends be paid only out of net profits calculated according to
PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects from
generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions,
including HKFRS. PRC laws also require enterprises incorporated in the
PRC to set aside at least 10% of their after-tax profits based on the
relevant accounting standards set out by the PRC regulatory
authorities at the end of each year to fund certain statutory reserves
until the statutory reserves reach and remain at or above 50% of the
relevant PRC entity’s registered capital. Distributions from our
subsidiaries may also be restricted if they incur debt or losses, or in
accordance with any restrictive covenants in bank credit facilities or
other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may enter into in the
future.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association has been amended and restated with
effect from the Listing Date, and are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

There is no change in constitutional documents of the Company after
the Listing.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report is the first Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report issued by Beauty Farm Medical and Health
Industry Inc. (2373.HK). Based on objective, comprehensive,
regulative and transparent principles, this Report presents
management ideas, key practices and annual achievements for
environmental, social and governance work of Beauty Farm
Medical and Health Industry Inc.

Reporting Scope

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022 ("the current year” or “the Reporting
Period”). To make the Report more informative, some contents
or data related to years before 2022.

This Report mainly covers the information and key performance
in respect of the fulfilment of the environmental, social and
governance responsibilities of Beauty Farm Medical and Health
Industry Inc. and its subsidiaries in 2022, including the Group
offices, stores and two Beauty Farm Training Centres, etc. Since
the daily operations of the franchised stores are independent of
the Group’s management, they are excluded from the reporting
scope.

Reference Standards

This Report is prepared mainly with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the ESG
Guide) under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and is
reported in accordance with the principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency included in the Guide. The
contents are in accordance with the disclosure principles set out
in the ESG Guidelines and have complied with the “mandatory
disclosure requirements” and “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Guidelines to address the environmental and
social impacts of the Company’s business and operational
activities. Part of the report content also refers to the
requirements of the “Guidance on Social Responsibility” (GB/T
36000-2015)/"Guidance on Social Responsibility Reporting”
(GB/T 36001-2015).
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The content of this Report is determined according to a set of
systematic procedures, which include identifying major
stakeholders, identifying and assessing the materiality of
ESG-related issues, defining the coverage of the ESG Report,
collecting relevant materials and data, conducting data collation
and aggregation, examining the figures in this Report,
preparing this report and reviewing by the management.

Reporting Principles

Materiality: We continuously communicate with our
stakeholders, regularly review the materiality of each sustainable
development area, and conduct materiality assessments to
determine critical environmental, social and governance issues.
The assessment result is being approved by The Board of
Directors.

Quantitative: This Report explains the criteria and
methodology for calculating the relevant data, accompanied by
the associated assumptions. The ESG key performance indicators
(KPIs) are supplemented by explanatory notes to establish
benchmarks where feasible.

Consistency: Unless otherwise specified, this Report applies a
consistent methodology in preparing and presenting ESG
information to allow for meaningful comparisons over time.

Balance: We appointed external sustainability consultants to
provide an unbiased disclosure of all our positive and
potentially negative data in this Report, describing the ESG
performance of the Group fairly and ensuring that accurate
information is available to the public and that the data
presented has no selections, omissions, or other forms of
manipulation that may inappropriately influence readers’
decisions or judgments.
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Data Sources and Reliability Guarantee

Data and cases in this Report are primarily extracted from the
statistical reports and internal documents of the Group. The
Group undertakes that the Report contains no false
representations or misleading statements, and assumes
responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of
its contents.

Acknowledgement and Approval

Upon confirmation by the management, this Report was passed
by the Board on March 29 2023.

Contact Us

We attach great importance to the views of stakeholders and
the public in this Report. If you have any inquiries or
suggestions, please feel free to contact the Company through
email ir@beautyfarm.com.cn.

Reporting Specification

For the convenience of presentation and reading, the “Beauty
Farm”, “Group” and “we"/"us"/"our” all refer to “Beauty Farm
Medical and Health Industry Inc.” and its subsidiaries in this
Report. Unless otherwise specified, all types of currencies
disclosed in this report refer to RMB.

ABOUT US

Beauty Farm is a one-stop provider of health and beauty
management services and is a leading company in China. Since
the establishment of its first store in Hainan Province in 1993,
the company has been focusing on providing body and skin
care services and expanded to anti-aging medical services in
2018. The one-stop service is based on the individual needs of
customers to meet their desire to maintain health and
attractiveness. The company offers body and skin care services
through the Beauty Farm, Palaispa, and CellCare, and
anti-aging medical services through Neology, covering a wide
range of high-end consumers in China’s body and skin care
service industry.
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Company Overview

We operate multiple chain brands in China’s beauty and health
management service industry, including Beauty Farm (FEEH
&), our flagship brand established in 1993, and three other
brands, namely, Palaispa (B 2%25F), Neology (#f1)&) and CellCare
(78] 52). We have built a national direct store network of 378
stores, which consisted of 189 direct stores and 189 franchise
stores. In our 189 direct stores, 91 stores located in tier-one
cities and 76 stores in new tier-one cities, as of December 31,
2022. Our direct stores and franchise stores cover a total of
121 cities in China.
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Business Milestones

1998

Shanghai Beauty Farm Development,

a non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group was incorporated in July and

our headquarters was relocated to Shanghai
SEMETEMBLR DEEBARER
MR - meEEE Lem

2005 ¥

We established BeautyFarm Training Center in
Shanghai in December, becoming the pioneer
in the beauty industry training institutions
PEEBHESIFON2AERAE -
PRARERITERIFIIMEBO ETE

2013 ¥

Beauty Farm has become a portfolio company of
CITIC Industrial Fund, confirming its strategic
direction in technology-driven anti-aging solutions
EBHERRTEEXESREME

HERR BRI RA BB T3 )

2018 ¥

We launched our online customer
relationship management (CRM) platform
in March in order to further enhance user
experience across our entire platform. We
launched our first healthcare center under

the Neology brand in Shanghai in April
RE—SRAZTFANRFER
SERIARBEREFARERTA -
I R4 B TE_ EET LA THE] i
R ERNEBER L

SEEREREE

1993 %

Our first store was established in Hainan province
FEHES —REXEZATONEREOMTL

2004 ¥

Shanghai Beauty Farm, the principal operating
subsidiary of the Group, was incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability in April
FENFELLWELR DEEERER

R4 RERBFMK L AERAF

2010 ¥

We initiated preparation for our first store offering
energy based and injection services, the store was
formally launched in 2011

B R BRSNS REPIESE
Tk - #%PIER2011FIER R

2016 ¥

We engaged in the strategic investment in
Palaispa in November
SEBERE S mER N EHEmE B3

2023 ¥

Officially listed on the Main Board of

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
ERTEBRZFAIPOERENE ET2 5
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